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EXAMINER CATANACH: Call the hearing
back to order, and at this time we'll call Case
10432.

Application of the 0CD on its own
motion to consider the amendment of Division
Order R-6388-A, special rules and procedures for
tight formation designations under Section 107 of
the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978.

Are there appearances in this case?

MR. STOVALL: I'm Robert G. Stovall,
General Counsel for the Division, Santa Fe.

EXAMINER CATANACH: Are there other
appearances?

MR. CARR: May it please the Examiner,
my name is William F. Carr with the law firm
Campbell, Carr, Berge & Sheridan of Santa Fe. I
would like to enter an appearance on behalf of
Enron 0il & Gas Company.

EXAMINER CATANACH: Other appearances?

MR. KELLAHIN: If the Examiner please,
I'm Tom Kellahin of the Santa Fe law firm of
Kellahin, Kellahin & Aubrey appearing on behalf
of Conoco, Inc.

MR. PEARCE: May it please the

Examiner, I'm W. Perry Pearce of the Santa Fe
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office of the law firm Montgomery & Andrews,
appearing in this matter on behalf of El1 Paso
Natural Gas Company.

EXAMINER CATANACH: Other appearances?

Gentlemen, do you have any witnesses
that you're going to put on today?

MR. PEARCE: No witnesses.

MR. CARR: No witnesses.

MR. KELLAHIN: No witnesses.

EXAMINER CATANACH: Can I get the
witness to stand and be sworn in-?

You may proceed, Mr. Stovall.

MICHAEL E. STOGNER

Having been first duly sworn upon his oath, was
examined and testified as follows:
EXAMINATION

BY MR. STOVALL:

Q. Would you please state your name and
place of residence for the record.

A. I'm Michael E. Stogner. I reside in
Estancia, New Mexico.

Q. How are you currently employed, Mr.
Stogner?

A. With the State of New Mexico 0il

Conservation Division here in Santa Fe.

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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Q. In what capacity?
A. As a petroleum engineer.
Q. In that capacity, are you familiar with

the caves and caverns of Southeast New Mexico?

A, Yes, I am.

Q. Good. I'm not going to ask you about
those.

A. Okavy.

Q. Are you also familiar with the agency's

rule as the jurisdictional agency for enforcement

of regulations under the Natural Gas Policy Act

of 19787
A. I'm somewhat familiar with it, ves.
Q. Have you handled classification

applications under that Act since you've been
with the Division, is that correct?
A. Since I started here in 1981, yes, sir.
Q. Specifically, are you familiar with the
procedure for the processing of applications for

tight sand designations under Section 107 of the

NGPA?
A. I'm somewhat familiar with it, ves.
Q. Would you briefly describe what the 107

classification under NGPA means, the significance

of it~?
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A. Section 107 tight formation was set up
by the FERC, the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, to designate certain formations as
tight, and there's some parameters in the rules
and regulations that set up these.

They were originally set up as a
wellhead price category designation but has since
been utilized as a federal tax credit.

Q. In other words, the NGPA was a ceiling
price statute and the regulations thereunder set
ceiling prices for certain categories of gas, is
that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And subsequently that function of the
NGPA and the regulations has more or less

disappeared from the scene? Would that be safe

to say?
A. That's safe to say, vyes.
Q. Let's move on to the specific

procedures now for approving specifically 107
tight sands designations.

Has the New Mexico 0il Conservation
Division adopted a procedure for processing and
evaluating such applications?

A, Originally in 1978, Order No. R-6388,

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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subsequently Order R-6388-A, was adopted on
February 10, 1981 in its now present format, with
rules and procedures in which the OCD has adopted
to designated tight formations in the State of
New Mexico, and that's Exhibit No. 1.

And if I may refer to Exhibit No. 2
which is out of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission's rules and regulations, Section
271.708 for tight formations, this is the federal
rules and regulations which essentially is what
our order R-6388 repeats and then sets up the
format in which the Division is to hear and make
a ruling and the procedures and requirements for
designations of tight formations.

Q. The procedures established under
R-6388-A, would you describe what currently is
required under that order in order to issue a
tight formation ruling?

A. Right now all applications go to
hearing, directly to hearing here at the 0il
Conservation Division. That's the most
significant at this time, other than the rules
and procedures, Mr. Stovall.

Q. Yes. And R-6388-A actually contains a

fairly detailed multi-paged Exhibit A which
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specifically describes the procedure, is that
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. In the enactment of the procedure here,
or in carrying out the functions of reviewing
these applications, is it correct to say that the
State is acting as an agency basically on behalf
of the federal government, and specifically the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, to carry
out federal law?

A. That is correct.

Q. And there is no state law regulating or
telling the OCD to do certain things with respect
to tight sands formations, is that correct?

A, That is correct.

Q. Does the NGPA or the regulations issued
thereunder, part 271, require that the matters
come to a hearing before the Division?

A, No, there's no parameter set up that
requires us to have a hearing, or any state
jurisdictional agency, for that matter.

Q. What are you proposing with this
application, then? What is the Division
proposing to do?

A. I'm essentially proposing at this time

RODRIGUEZ~-VESTAL REPORTING
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to drop the public hearing procedure and adapt an
administrative procedure that will give us here
at the 0il Conservation Division more leeway to
work with the US BLM and their role in tight
formation designations.

Q. Would you go through the history of
what has evolved with respect to tight sands
designations that motivates the Division to

request this change in procedure?

A. Since 1979 we've had 27 here at the 0il
Conservation Division. There have been 27
approved tight formation designated areas. One

application was withdrawn at the Commission
level, that was New Mexico designation 5. There
was one addition to an existing one, and that, by
the way, was the famous Abo one that now consists
of about 5,000,000 acres, two dismissals at the
0il Conservation Division level, one denial at
the 0il Conservation Division level.

There are two pending Commission--when
I say Commission, Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission--final approval. They may or may
not. I haven't had any information on that vyet.
There's also three pending BLM-0CD approval at

this time.
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In the beginning we had hearings on all
of these applications, and everything was going
along--should I continue with this, Mr. Stovall?

Q. Please. You're doing just fine.

A, Everything was going along very fine.
What I mean by that was, if there was any federal
lands involved in the tight formation area,
regulations set out in the FERC require ruling or
recommendations also from the United States
Bureau of Land Management or the Federal agency
of the Department of Interior to review and make
their recommendations.

The way it was with these first 27,
more or less, was that a hearing was held here in
Santa Fe, the 0il Conservation Division issued an
order, everything was packed away, exhibits,
testimony, the Order, was sent to the Albuguerque
BLM office. They then sent back to us a
recommendation. Usually those recommendations
just echoed what we had already authorized.

There were a couple of exceptions. The
first one, New Mexico No. 5, the U.S.G.S. wanted
more acreage dedicated in the tight formation
than what the Applicant reguested. It went to

the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission level.
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I wasn't involved at that time, but to
make a long story short it was withdrawn by the
Applicant at that level and it was never
adopted.

And then, when New Mexico 25--New
Mexico 25 is the designation which the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission identifies certain
tight formation areas--Four Corners Gas Producers
Association requested a portion of the Pictured
Cliffs be designated as tight formation.

An order was issued and if I could, Mr.
Stovall, refer to Exhibit No. 37

Q. Please do.

A, The New Mexico 0il Conservation
Division, Mr. Richard L. Stamets as the hearing
Examiner, issued Order No. R-7200, and that
essentially adopted what the application
reguested.

The Albuquerque office of the BLM wrote
back a letter, and that's also in this exhibit,
to Mr. W. Perry Pearce, who was then General
Counsel for the 0il Conservation Division by
letter of May 3, 1983, with their recommendations
to delete some acreage, and also includes some

additional acreage that the Applicant did not
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request.

All of this was packaged up and sent to
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and by
letter of March 28, 1984. It includes some
comments from the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission to the US BLM, The final
authorization from the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission included all areas regquested, the
additions by the BLM and also what was requested
by the New Mexico 0il Conservation Division.
They did not delete, as requested from the BLM,
the acreage in there.

Things were starting to happen at this
time. The BLM was getting more--how would you
say?--authority, or they were beginning to make
more recommendations in these tight formation
cases.

Q. Or actively reviewing it? Would that
be the case, rather than simply accepting 0OCD
orders and recommendations?

A. Yes.

Q. At that time, at the time that NM-25
was submitted back in 1983-84, is that correct?

A. Effective October 22, 1984.

Q. The FERC is the final authority to

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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approve or disapprove these classifications?

A. That's correct.

Q. At the time that NM-25 was submitted,
how did the FERC approach different
recommendations from the state jurisdictional
agency and the Bureau of Land Management?

A. They, being the Commission, would
review both recommendations and issue a final
order from both recommendations.

Q. In other words, those recommendations
could go in differently and FERC would decide
which one to adopt or what combination of the
two?

A. That's right.

Q. And they adjudicated any differences
that existed between the state recommendation and

the BLM recommendation, or U.S.G.S. at the time?

A. That's correct.
Q. Has that changed since NM-257?
A, It's my understanding it has. From

1984, which was essentially the last tight
formation cases that went through this process,
the tight formation designation was a dead issue
since the NGPA pricing did not really effect or

it had been deregulated.
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Q. In other words, you couldn't sell it at
NGPA tight sands price, and therefore there was
no incentive to bring an application, is that
what you're saying?

A. That's correct. When we did have an
application from Mr. Robert G. Bayless, and I'm
going to refer to Exhibit No. 4. Essentially,
this application was filed because the IRS had
adopted a tax credit, tying tax credits on wells
in tight formations utilizing the tight formation
FERC rules and regulations and procedures, which,
in turn, involved the OCD.

Case No. 10264, Order R-9495--

Q. Again that's Exhibit 4 that you're
referring to, which contains the order and other
information?

A. That's correct. --was issued. This
particular filing contained 193 acres, more or
less, all federal land, portions of it being on
BLM property, portions of it being on Forest
Service property.

Q. How many acres again? Let's go over
that again. I thought you said it was 193
acres. I believe it was a little larger than

that, wasn't it?

RODRIGUEZ~-VESTAL REPORTING
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A. I show 193,000 acres.
Q. Oh, I'm sorry. You said 193 acres.
A. I'm sorry. In fact, 193,090 acres, and

that was known as the Cabresto Tight Gas Area.

Q. Bayless brought the application to the
state, is that correct?

A. That is correct. The Albuguerque BLM
representatives were here that day but did not
actively participate in the hearing. The case
was taken under advisement, this Order was
issued, the packet was put together, sent to the
BLM for their recommendation.

In conversations between myself and Mr.
Allen Buckingham in the Albuquergue District
Office, they had a problem with the area, and I
was informed at that time that any applications
for tight formations that went into the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission had to be
identical. They would no longer accept two types
of recommendations. The agencies had to get
together and issue one recommendation to the
FERC. I was not aware of that policy or
procedure at that time.

Q. Is it your understanding from your

conversations with Mr. Buckingham, and I

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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recognize it is not a legal opinion but rather
just a recollection from your conversation, that
the FERC had advised Mr. Buckingham, and through
him, you, that they had determined that they did
not have the authority to adjudicate between
different recommendations but were merely to
approve an agreed-upon recommendation from the

state jurisdictional agency and the Federal

agency?
A. That is my understanding, yes, sir.
Q. What happened to Mr. Bayless'

application as a result of that?

A. I contacted the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission and, to be more particular,
Ms. Marilyn Rand, who is the Director of the
Division of Producer Resolutions. She's
essentially the one who is over that particular
bureau or division or department, if you will, in
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission that
reviews these type of applications. I wanted to
confirm what Mr. Buckingham was telling me, not
that I didn't believe him but I wanted to find
out some more about this.

In my conversations with her, I also

informed her that this particular application was

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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all federal land, and why did they need
recommendation from the 0OCD, if that be the

case? She informed me that she would get back
with me and she did the next day, and my letter
of July 11, 1991 is my letter to her confirming
what I understood her to say, and I've not
received any type of correspondence to lead me to
believe that what she did tell me was not true.

Q. In other words, your letter of July
11th, which is part of the packet in Exhibit 4,
essentially says what you testified here, that
the NMOCD is not required to review tight sands
applications where there is no state or fee
acreage involved, is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. And you've had no response from Ms.
Rand so you assume she approves or agrees with
your interpretation of your conversation?

A. That is correct. Also, my last portion
of this exhibit, a letter of October 18, 1991,
was essentially the BLM acting as the
jurisdictional agency making the application for
that particular tight formation designation to
the BLM.

The first page of Exhibit No. 4 is from
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the Federal Register showing the Bureau of Land
Management as the Applicant, and not the state
jurisdictional agency. So that broke, as I
understand, a precedent.

Q. When these things were filed before, if
you look at NM-25, the state is the Applicant to

the FERC for approval?

A, And all others, also.

Q. And all the other agencies involved in
it?

A. That's correct.

Q. Now you're saying, with federal lands

only the BLM is involved?

A. Yes.

Q. What's the effect on the applicants for
these tight sands formations if they have to come
to hearing before the state and then go through
the BLM evaluation? What does that do to the
Applicant?

A. It's a very awkward situation. At the
same time as Bayless' application we had another
application for a tight formation. That was a
little nerve-racking in as much as we went ahead

with the procedure.

In that particular application, the BLM

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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agreed with our recommendation, so that really
wasn't a problem, and that was New Mexico 30, I
might add.

Q. And that involves fee and state lands,
is that correct?

A. It had some fee and state land. The
majority of it was federal, however.

Q. Now that application, if I understand
correctly, that application was heard by vyou as
an Examiner for the 0OCD, and an order was issued?

A. Actually that was heard by Mr. Jim
Morrow, but I did submit the application, with
the recommendation from the BLM, to the FERC as
the state agency making the application to the
FERC for the designated tight formation.

Q. Now the application can name state and
fee lands and federal lands, and, in this case,
both agencies submitted identical applications
and recommendations?

A. That is correct. But in this, it was
evolving. This was evolving. We had three other
applications or four other applications, and in
my conversations with Allen Buckingham, we needed
to come up with some sort of an agreement or some

type of a way to do this because the hearing
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process was somewhat awkward because the BLM,
having federal land, they also have a staff that
can review these things. We're not in the
position.

It just made it an awkward position to
try to issue an order and then have to change it
again if the BLM disagreed with it.

Q. In other words, the BLM, at least with
respect to the federal lands, processed it
administratively, and OCD processed it through a
hearing?

A. Correct.

Q. The difference is, in the hearing
situation, all of the evidence is presented at
one time and placed on a record just as we're
doing today?

A, That's correct.

Q. And in an administrative review,
there's ongoing information gathering, a less
formal process, which allows information to be
supplemented?

A. That's correct, and that's the way the
BLM has proceeded with many of these, as I
understand.

Q. So what you run into when you'wve got

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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this joint jurisdictional approach is that the
two agencies are using a different procedure and
it's difficult to reconcile that administrative
information-gathering process with a structured
hearing process?

A. That is correct.

Q. How has the division and the BLM

handled that most recently?

A, The way we've handled it most recently
was, we requested the Applicant-- Let me start
over. We tried to deal with what we had.

We had a preliminary meeting. The BLM
had the application as the 0OCD d4id. We had a
preliminary meeting with the people involved who
went over the application. We then, "we" being
the OCD and BLM personnel, made some suggestions,
worked with the Applicant, made some suggestions
on how they should maybe approach particular
geological items, changing some different
engineering items, suggesting that we might need
some more information in this particular area or
that particular area within the designated area,
before we actually came to hearing, so those
gquestions and those items could be dealt with

before we got into the situation where an order
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was issued.

Q. After all these preliminary meetings,
did the 0CD, in fact, conduct a hearing? Let's
talk, for example, about an application of Union
0il Company for tight sands designation in Rio
Arriba County.

A. I think you're referring to Case No.
10420 which, by the way, there has not been an
order issued. That's Exhibit No. 5.

Q. Exhibit No. 5 is a piece of the
transcript, but let's first talk about how the
case--there was a hearing held in 104207?

A. That's right. In fact, we held that in
Albugquerque at the BLM offices so they could
become more active in the hearing process.

Q. And was that the result of an effort to
try to bring these two different processes
together for the convenience of these agencies
and the Applicant?

A. That's right.

Q. So at that hearing you sat as the
Hearing Examiner, is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. And there were also BLM personnel

present who, in effect, sat and listened to it as
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part of their administrative review?

A, Four of them, in fact, made up of Allen
Buckingham, Jane Clancy, their geologist, an
engineer, and also Mr. Buckingham's assistant.

Q. Just for the record, the engineer's
name would be Robert Kent.

So the format of this hearing was an
OCD Examiner hearing format reported by a court
reporter and conducted under the relaxed rules of
procedure and evidence which the 0CD uses, is
that correct?

A. Relaxed, vyes.

Q. And the BLM participated and actually
had the opportunity to gquestion the witnesses and
gather the information which they felt they
needed as part of the process for their
administrative approval, is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. You're saying that no order has been
issued in this case yet, but if an order were
issued, if you were simply to issue a recommended
order to the Director and he issued that order at
this point, what would happen now? If you wrote
an order based upon your understanding of the

testimony and issued it, what would happen to
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that order? In other words, you would submit

that to the BLM?

A. Yes, I would.

Q. They couldn't change that order, could
they?

A, No, they couldn't.

Q. But they could make a different

recommendations?

A. That is correct.

Q. But we've been told by the FERC that we
can't submit different recommendations to the
FERC for approval?

A. That's correct.

Q. Administratively the BLM would either
have to agree with your order, the OCD order, or
the OCD would have to change its order to
something the BLM agreed to, is that correct?

A. Either by nunc pro tunc or reopening
the case, vyes.

Q. And submitted nunc pro tunc

procedurally raises some problems since it's

based upon an existing record?

A. Yes. I wouldn't recommend a nunc pro

tunc in this instance.

Q. Now, Exhibit 5 is a portion of the
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transcript from the December 20th hearing from
Case 10420. What is the importance of this
particular portion of the transcript and why have
you submitted it here?

A. Mr. Buckingham made a statement at that
particular hearing, and one of the reasons I put
this in here today is jointly with Exhibit No.
6--and if I may go over Exhibit No. 6 and
identify that?

Q. Please do.

A, This is from Federal Register, Volume
56, Nc. 61, proposed rule-making changes to the
tight formation procedure, bringing the procedure
in line with the tax credit.

Some of the more significant changes in
there would be the maximum allowed production
down telow 15,000 feet. The reason it stopped at
15,000 feet in the o0ld days was because anything
past 15,000 feet was deregulated. So now they
had to bring up wells deeper than 15,000 feet.

Also, the guestion of infill drilling,
whereby economics played a part in the old
procedure. Now, the higher priced gas is no
longer the issue, the tax credit is the issue,

but the present order on the present rulings do
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not address that and these proposed rules have
not been been adopted by the FERC, and the way I
understand from Mr. Buckingham--and that's why I
put his statement in here--is his conversations
with the NGPA on how these are to be administered
and handled and how they are going to proceed
with it, which is still somewhat of a mystery.

Even he's suggesting here that this may
be a test case for them to change, "them" being
the Commission, to change their procedures.

Q. As I read this testimony, just to touch
on it briefly, what he's saying is under the old
purposes of the NGPA, the 107 pricing, was a
price incentive to encourage drilling when
supplies were tight and economic considerations
and the cost of recovering the gas were
significant, is that correct?

A. That's my understanding.

Q. And under the current situation, it is
not the price incentive of the NGPA but rather
the nonconventional credit offered under Section
29 of the Internal Revenue Code which offers the
incentive, and that is not a price-cost driven
incentive, is that correct?

A. That's my understanding.
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Q. And therefore, the cost of recovering
the gas from tight sands is no longer an
important or relevant factor in making the
application?

A. That's my understanding.

Q. That's what the notice of proposed
rule-making in Exhibit 6 addresses or tries to--
A, That's why I included it, yes, sir.

Q. As far as the procedure which we're
recomnmending for the processing of 107

applications, that's only a small piece of the

reason?
A. That's correct.
Q. Under the NGPA, and in fact we are

acting under federal law in these proceedings,
there is no requirement for a hearing?

A, That is my understanding.

Q. What are you recommending as the manner
to handle the 107 applications in the future?

A, The way I see it is an administrative
procedure, where an application is made, and it
would give the Division a little leeway of how to
handle each application. And we can reserve, I
would like to reserve the fact that we could

bring these to hearing, if need be.
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But look at the application, how much
federal land is involved. If there's very little
state and/or fee land, perhaps get the BLM to be
the Applicant, in which case the Division would
make a recommendation to them, and let their
staff--

Q. Let me interrupt you for just a second,
because I think terminology could be a problem.
When you talk about "applicant," you've got two
applicants, in effect. You have an applicant to
the jurisdictional agency, the operator who is
requesting the designation, is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. And the applicant as you used the term
now, before the FERC, it is the jurisdictional
agency, either the Department of Interior agency
or the state, which is the actual applicant on an
application before the FERC to approve the
Operator/Applicant's request for a designation?

A. That is correct. My apologies on that.

Q. That's all right. You're talking about
an administrative process whereby the operator
submits to the appropriate jurisdictional
agencies or requests for those agencies to submit

an application to the FERC?
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A. Yes, and I'll try to use in that term
the sponsor of the application to the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission.

Also, these preliminary meetings, if
need he, we could utilize those, "we" being both
the BLM and the Division, to hash out, make
recommendations, make some suggestions,
supplement data that needs be before whichever
agency is the sponsor of the application before
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Q. Now this administrative type approach
which the BLM currently uses for thee, is that
sort ¢f an administrative approach where you get
an application from an operator and then request
supplemental information and discuss it with
him? Is that something that the 0CD has used in
other types of applications?

A. In administrative applications we use
that all the time, vyes.

Q. So the OCD is not unfamiliar with the
process of administratively gathering information
and then approving a request from an operator for
a specific--

A. I don't think so. There might be sonme

applicants who disagree, but I don't think so.
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Q. We won't go into that. Is there any
precedent for a state jurisdictional agency using
an administrative process rather than a hearing
process, for acting under the Natural Gas Policy
Act?

A. There are several and I included one,
Exhibit No. 7, just for purposes of your question
today, a copy of the Natural Gas Policy Act, the
Texas approach, which is a nice booklet. I
included pages D-11 through D-13 which the Texas
Railroad Commission has adopted for naming tight
formation designations. That is an
administrative process, but they do reserve the
right in there to take an application to the
Commission for hearing.

Q. Let's more specifically discuss the
recommended procedure that you would recommend.
First off, with respect to Order R-6388, 1
believe the application in this case is for an
amendment to that order. Is that actually what
we want to do or would you like to rescind that
order as it exists today?

A. I think it would be possible to rescind
the order today and adopt an administrative

process, which is in essence what I'm asking.
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Q. Now, in terms of actually writing an
order out of this hearing to specify a procedure
for the Division to handle 107 applications, do
you believe it's necessary that such order
contain a detailed procedural methodology as is
contained in Exhibit A, or is it possible for it
to simply approve an administrative process
subject to procedures established by the
Division?

A. I think it would be possible to approve
these by an administrative process. So to answer
your guestion, yes.

Q. And then the Division could, by
decision of the Director, by a memorandum or
directive of the Director of the Division,
specify more specific detailed information which
would be comparable to that contained in Exhibit
A of Crder R-6388-A but which could be changed
from time to time as the need required?

A. Yes. On top of that, this being a
federal type of--how would you say?--a procedure
in which we are the acting agency, I don't think
we're bound to have an order directing how the
application is to be processed through an "R"

order.
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I think a more relaxed administrative
procedure, perhaps by memorandum that we could
change at a whim, without having some sort of a
hearing. What I mean by a whim is, if the
Commission--

Q. Based upon good reason? Is that what
you're saying?

A. Yeah.

Q. If the Director feels there's a good
reason to change something, he can do it without
having to go back to a hearing to make a minor
change to the process?

A. Yes. And what I meant by whims were
any federal whims that might come along.

Q. Is there any precedent within the
Division for having an administrative process and
then guidelines or non-Order-driven procedures
for handling applications in an administrative
matter?

A. The Environmental Bureau in the most
recent past has set up procedures adopted in this
matter.

Q. So it's not something new and totally
unique for the Division to have an order that

says you can do this administratively, and have
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guidelines to guide you to do it, 1is that
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Have you developed any guidelines which
you would submit as the type of thing that you
would ask the Director to adopt for the
procedure?

A. Why, as a matter of fact, yes, I have.
Exhibit No. 8 shows that. Which there is a stack
in the back of the room there.

Q. Not any more. So, Exhibit No. 8 is the
procedure you would recommend if, in fact an
order is issued today approving administrative
processing of tight sands applications, this
Exhibit 8 is how you would recommend that the
Division process these applications?

A. That is correct, yes, sir. And this,
by the way, is a draft procedure.

Q. And you do not ask that this procedure
be incorporated into the order itself that will
come cut of this hearing?

A. That is correct.

Q. To the best of your knowledge, do these
procedures satisfy the requirements of the NGPA?

A, I believe they do.
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Q. Specifically, let's look at one
particular part of this. I'm not referring to a
specific portion of it but rather the notice
requirements.

The Division has specific notice
requirements in its general rules and regulations
regarding notice of hearings, is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. Does the NGPA and the regulations
issued thereunder, do they have notice
requirements with respect to applications under
the NGPA?

A. Yes, they do. For instance, when an
application for a wellhead category is made with
the BLM, it's required to be published in the
county and then they have 15 days to respond.

The way I understand it now, the BLM,
in their administrative process for tight
formations, require notification in the county or
counties in which a designated area is in. I
have essentially adopted what the BLM has
accepted.

Q. And the Operator/Applicant, he is
required to provide that notice in the

publication, is that correct?
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A. That is correct.

Q. Do you see any problem with adopting,
within this procedure, notice requirements which
are consistent with the NGPA rather than having a
different set of notice requirements for 0OCD and
BLM, for the approval of these applications?

A. I see no problen. If I might add, I
have suggested 20 days. I would have to check
with the BLM. 20 days we've adopted for other
administrative procedures such as unorthodox
locations, in our procedures here at the
Division.

Q. And the NGPA only requires 15 days'

notice, is that correct?

A. That is correct, so that's subject to
change.
Q. Is there anything else with respect to

the procedures and recommendations that you would
like to add to your testimony?
A. No.
MR. STOVALL: I would move the
admission of Division Exhibits 1 through 8.
EXAMINER CATANACH: Exhibits 1 through
8 will be admitted as evidence.

MR. STOVALL: I have no further
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gquestions.
EXAMINER CATANACH: Are there any
gquestions of the witness? Mr. Kellahin.
EXAMINATION
BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q. Mr. Stogner, I want to thank you for
taking the initiative to change the procedure to
give us more flexibility. Let me understand,
however, how you propose to do some of the items

under the administrative processing.

A, Okay. And you're referring to Exhibit
87

Q. Yes, sir. Under the procedure, give me
an example of how this would work. If I have all

federal acreage within my area of application, it
would then go straight to the BLM?

A. That is correct.

Q. The paragraph C(4) does not yet clarify
that this publication, or proof of publication,
is triggered only in those instances where the
Division would be a sponsoring agency, if you
will.

Is that your intent, that the notice in
this procedure here is triggered only when we

have the OCD as the sponsoring agency?
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A. That is correct. The way I have
visualized this, and you caught on that, if you
have all federal acreage, then you file only with
the BLM and that's the procedure in part C,
subparagraph 2. It's my intent that after that
the Division not be pulled into this process
and--

MR. STOVALL: In other words, if
there's no application before the Division,
there's no notice required by the Division
procedure.

A. That's right. And perhaps, as Mr.
Kellahin suggested, make it more clear.

Q. Let me understand. If I have all
federal acreage and I have to satisfy the BLM's
publication notice requirements, does that
notification reguire objections to be filed with
the BLM, do vou remember?

A. I'm not sure.

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Kellahin, If I‘may
respond to you, the notice requirements contained
in this proposed procedure would only apply to
applications which are filed with the O0CD.

It is the intent of the 0CD, and I

think it's Mr. Stogner's testimony, that that
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notice requirement be as consistent as possible
with the NGPA-BLM notice requirements, so that
the notice you file for one, satisfies both.

The only difference, I think, is the 20
versus the 15 days being the timing of it. The
effect would be that the same notice would work
for both applications, if both agencies are
involved.

Q. When we look at C(5), am I also clear
in understanding that we're dealing only with
objections filed for those applications in which
the Division is the sponsoring agency?

A, That is correct.

Q. And if there's an objection filed under
a Federal-sponsored application, the BLM will
have to figure out how to deal with that
objection?

A. Yes, you're correct on that. And
there's no reason why they, "they" being the BLM,
can suggest that we have a hearing here. Why
they would, I don't know. But I can see where we
could have a hearing here on all federal lands.
God knows why.

Q. In the past the BLM has not had a very

convenient hearing process to handle objections
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with regards to the BLM matters, and this hearing
process, then, is triggered only with
applications that deal with fee and state acreage
in which you're the sponsoring agency?

A. That is correct.

Q. The transcript generated now under the
hearing procedures, is that forwarded on to FERC
in support of the application?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Do you see any weakness in the process
if an administrative procedure is adopted in
which a transcript is no longer generated to be
submitted to FERC in support of the application?

A. No. And the reason I say that is, as
far as I understand the Texas procedure, which is
administrative, they have no transcript with
theirs. And there are some other states, and I
can't remember them offhand, that do not have a
transcript involved. I do not see that as a
weakness.

MR. STOVALL: I might point to Section
D, and again we're sort of in a rule-making,
Section D discusses what evidence must be
submitted by the Applicant with respect to these

applications, and that is the evidence which
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would go to the FERC. We've had some discussion
about requiring that evidence to be submitted
under affidavit so it becomes sworn testimony
with respect to, particularly, the scientific
opinicns rendered thereunder.

Q. I understood this to be tracking the
existing procedure. I was just curious, as a
practical matter, as to what usefulness the
existing transcripts were in defending the
application when it went to FERC?

A, I cannot speak for the FERC, but I do
understand that they, the FERC, the Commission,
reviews everything that is sent to them and that
includes the transcript, and I'm aware of that.
That is the reason I've also put in this
procedure that each exhibit have along with it a
discussion by the preparer, if you will, so,
therefore the preparer is making their
interpretation of this exhibit.

I don't think the Applicant, the
operator, wants any ¢government official or
anybody else making their interpretation for
them, and that, I believe, would get around the
transcript with a discussion attached to a

particular exhibit; "exhibit" being a map, plat,
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any type of scientific data.

MR. STOVALL: Question on that again if
I might, to supplement Mr. Kellahin, we've talked
about the administrative process as being one of
an exchange of information or regquest for
additional information. An Applicant would
submit it with his explanation and then if the
state, as a jurisdictional agency, requested
additional information, either explanation or
additional exhibits, those also would go as part
of the package.

So it's not a one-time deal, like a
transcript is a one-time recording of what the

Applicant has to say--

A. That is correct.
MR. STOVALL: --with the chance to
question and clarify. You'll have that same

process where the Applicant submits something and
there's gquestioning and clarification, but it's
in written documents rather than a written
transcript of oral testimony.

A. That's right.

Q. {BY MR. KELLAHIN) In reviewing the
past applications that have been processed, do

you find any indication that any of those cases
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were ever opposed by any individual or company?
A. There's one particular application and
I believe that involved Unocal.

MR. STOVALL: I believe there was an
earlier one, and let me back up on that, Mr.
Kellahin. My recollection from Division records,
and it is only my recollection, that in a couple
of cases in Northwest New Mexico, Gas Company of
New Mexico was concerned about applications
because of some contractual situations they had.
I don't believe in either case they actually
filed an objection or participated in the
hearings as an opponent.

So the answer to your guestion is,
legalistically speaking, no, there have been no
formal objection to any application.

MR. KELLAHIN: I raise that with you
only in the context of establishing an
administrative procedure that is independent of
the R orders and is outside of the rule book. If
this is not a customarily opposed process, then I
think it's probably convenient to establish an
administrative procedure for only handling this
type of case.

MR. STOVALL: And I think the fact that
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it's ocutside the rule book is because it is the
application of federal law and no state law, and
that's why we have chosen for not to implement a
rule into the general rules and regulations for
this procedure.

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank vyou. I have no
further guestions.

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any other guestions
of this witness?

I just have a couple.

EXAMINATION

BY EXAMINER CATANACH:

Q. Mr. Stogner, is it my understanding
that all applications with simply federal acreage
will be handled by BLM solely?

A. That is correct.

Q. When will the state sponsor an
application, when there's any state or fee lands
in the area?

A, That is negotiable. The way I
visualize this, say an application comes in and
has 98 percent federal land and two percent fee,
I don't want, nor do I intend, to be the sponsor
of that--1I should say the Division. I would not

like to see the Division sponsor an application
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where the BLM has a majority of the acreage and
they can do the majority of the work.

We simply do not have the personnel or
the time. In those particular instances, say,
where there's 10 percent state, 90 percent
Federal, I believe that I can, "I" being the
Division, could sponsor an application. But we
would have to test a few of these first.

That's what I would like to see, if
there's the majority of federal land, let the BLM
be the sponsoring Applicant and the Division work
alongside the BLM in reviewing the application
and making the recommendation to them.

The way it stands now and probably the
way it would be, the Division would be the
sponsoring Applicant to the FERC in these low
state/fee acreage applications.

MR. STOVALL: Technically, and let me
supplement that, technically if there's as much
as one acre or any plece of state or fee lands,
the state could become involved in the process
but administratively you would probably ask the
BLM to do the work, is that correct?

THE WITNESS: That is correct. And the

Division would have to have some hand in it one
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way or the other; correspondence or review. It
would be required to be reviewed, yes, by the
Division.

Q. How is the Applicant going to know who
he has to file with? 1Is that going to be
contained in the proposed memorandum or the
order?

A. Yes. I believe in the procedure
porticn, paragraphs 2 and 3, I believe, make that
clear. I'm sorry, 1 and 2.

Q. Do you foresee a situation where the
Division and the BLM cannot agree on an
application?

A. All the time.

Q. And what procedures are you going to
use or is the Division going to use to resolve
those issues?

A. That would be negotiated between the
responsible parties here at the Division talking
technical issues with the BLM. It would be a
procedure in which everybody would sit down and
have to come out with more than one type of
recommendation, and more than likely I could see
this being at the BLM office in their setting,

yveah, behind closed doors.
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MR. STOVALL: Let me ask a follow-up,
if I might, Mr. Examiner. In a situation where
that would occur, would you conceive of a
situation where perhaps the BLM could nmake a
recommendation with respect to the federal lands
involved, and the state could make a
recommendation with respect to state and fee
lands, and they could each agree to accept the
other's recommendations with respect to the lands
over which they have jurisdiction?

THE WITNESS: That's one of the
procedures in which I would be prepared in going
into these negotiations, yes.

Q. (BY EXAMINER CATANACH) Now, as 1
understand it, the procedure you want to use, you
want to rescind 6388-A, is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And 6388-B, in effect, what would that
order do?

A. Rescind 6388-A and let it be known that
an administrative procedure has been adopted,
that would be adopted at this particular time and
could be changed in accordance with existing law
or any law, being federal law.

Q. But the procedure itself would not be
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contained within 6388-B?

A. That 1is correct, it would not be
incorporated within the order.

Q. It would be in the form of a memorandun

or some type of other document?

A. Yes, it would. Perhaps call it
something like what Texas came up with. Maybe
call it "NGPA, The New Mexico Way." I don't
know.

MR. CATANACH: I believe that's all I
have. Can I get you or your attorney to submit a
rough draft order in this case?

THE WITNESS: I would suggest that my
attorney submit an order.

EXAMINER CATANACH: I would agree. I

FURTHER EXAMINATION

BY MR. STOVALL:

Q. One thing I want to put in, and I'n
not sure it's real critical, but under the
Division procedures if a party who was adversely
affected by an order or didn't like an Order,
they could take it de novo before the Commission,
is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. Assuming an order was issued by the

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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Division in concurrence with discussions with the
BLM under the current procedure, and the
applicant didn't like that order, they could take
it de novo, but what would be the effect of a
Commission de novo order?

A. Essentially the same as the Division
order. There would still be an argument and they
would have to, essentially, learn to deal with
it.

Q. In other words, if the Commission
revised or changed the Division order after a de
novo hearing, that doesn't resolve the conflict
between the BLM--

A. That's correct. The conflict would
still be there, only at a higher 1level.

Q. And then you could take it to the
courts, so that's another potential complication
in the existing procedure?

A. That is correct. I might add that the
Commission has a procedure to hear any

objections.

Q. The FERC Commission?
A. Yes.
Q. One other thing. With respect to the

order that may come out of this hearing, would it
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be appropriate to include the concepts contained
in paragraphs C(1) and (2) of your procedure in
the order itself, that says if there are any
state or fee lands involved, the application
shall be filed with the Division; and if there
are nc state or fee lands, then it shall be filed
only with the BLM or appropriate entity?

A. That is my intent, yes.

Q. Is that something that perhaps should
be set in the order?

A. Definitely.

Q. Rather than in just the procedure, so
an applicant/operator can go to the order and
know whether to file with the state or not?

A. Yes, I see what you're saying. I
believe that could be acceptable.

Q. The only other guestion I have with
regard to procedure, and again this could be
changed if the order is adopted, paragraph GC(6),
should the director be allowed the discretion to
set an objected-to-application to hearing or give
time to process and evaluate the objection before
it's automatically set for hearing?

A, Yes.

Q. It may be set for hearing rather than

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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it shall be set for hearing?
A. Yes. Like I said, this is just a
rough.

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Examiner, I would
like to, at this time, ask the parties who have
appeared here, if it would be of any value to
them, if there would be a request for keep the
record open for submittals? With respect to the
order itself, there will always be the
opportunity to address the procedure. Is there
any need to keep the record open? And I would
ask the attorneys who have appeared here to
respond to that.

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Catanach, Mr.
Stovall, I believe there is the need for a short
period of time. You've raised a guestion just
now that I have not thought through, and that is,
under the new process, if the Division should
deny the operator/applicant's request, what is
the administrative remedy for the
operator/applicant? How does he, say, exhaust
his administrative remedies?

Does he then file an application before
the OCD and take his appeal through the 0il

Conservation Commission, or is his administrative
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recourse to go to FERC and fight for his case at
that point?

MR. STOVALL: I think that's an issue
and I think the question is, as Mr. Stogner
explained, we don't have any control over the BLM
and if there's not agreement, FERC's not going to
act. So that really does create a problemn. But
I don't have any problem keeping the record open
to give you time to think about that.

MR. KELLAHIN: I don't understand how
that's going to work. I presume, under the
existing order, if the Division denies an
application that the remedy, then, obligates the
operator/applicant to file for a Commission de
novo hearing and see what happens there.

This is such a unique situation that
apart from that issue, the burden of a hearing
process is not useful in processing these unigque
kinds of cases. There are some things yet I have
not revolved, this appeal process is one of
them. So, to answer your dgquestion, I would like
to have some time to think about it and respond
to the Examiner. I would think two weeks would
satisfy that.

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Carr?

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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MR. CARR: I concur with Mr. Kellahin.

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Pearce?

MR. PEARCE: VYes.

MR. STOVALL: With that in mind, Mr.
Examiner, I have nothing further. I would
request the record be left open for two weeks for
the purpose of receiving comments and proposals
from parties appearing here. I guess we have to
leave it for parties, and somebody is going to
have to go to the people the attorneys
represented here. It is a hearing record, so.

MR. KELLAHIN: If there are others in
the room that want to submit it, they can submit
it to any of the lawyers, and we will be happy to
forward it on. I don't think this rule-making
procedure be strictly construed that it requires
an interested party to have to have counsel in
order to participate.

EXAMINER CATANACH: Anything further,
Mr. Stovall?

MR. STOVALL: No, I think I‘'ve dragged
it out sufficiently long. Thank vyou.

EXAMINER CATANACH: We'll leave the
record open for two weeks, and anyone who is

present today can submit comments or proposals.

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
(505) 988-1772




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

54

MR. CARR: Mr. Catanach, Enron has
asked me to make a very brief statement on their
behalf. Is this the appropriate time?

EXAMINER CATANACH: Sure is.

MR. CARR: As the Division is aware,
Enron currently has an application pending before
this agency and also the BLM, seeking designation
of a tight formation in Lea County, New Mexico.

This application has resulted in the
pre-hearing meetings with agency personnel in
Albuquergque and alsoc has resulted in a hearing on
December 20th.

We support the adoption of an
administrative procedure for handling
applications for tight formations. When
applications of this nature are filed, time is
really of the essence, and we're concerned with
what may happen to one of us similar to what
happened to Mr. Bayless and his application.

We think the administrative procedure
will result in a more efficient presentation and
certainly should expedite the approval process,
and for this reason we think that a speedy
adoption of an administrative procedure would be

appropriate.
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EXAMINER CATANACH: Thank you, Mr.
Carr. Any other statements at this time?

MR. KELLAHIN: On behalf of Conoco, Mr,.
Examiner, we support an administrative procedure
to replace the hearing process that now exists in
the order. Conoco, like Mr. Carr's clients, is
currently involved under the current procedure.
It is cumbersome. It is, we perceive, resulting
in delays in processing our regquest, and
particularly when it invoclves a joint effort by
the BLM and the OCD. The informal process in
handling the technical data is going to expedite
final action on these applications.

The hearing process is not a useful
device, it's not needed, they're seldom, if ever
opposed, and the necessity of a transcript
doesn't exist in this type of case. So we would
request and support the adoption of an
administrative process.

EXAMINER CATANACH: Thank you, Mr.
Kellahin. Is there anything further?

MR. PEARCE: If it please the Examiner,
Mr. Kendrick has a statement on behalf of E1 Paso
Natural Gas.

MR. KENDRICK: Mr. Examiner, E1l1 Paso
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Natural Gas supports the 0il Conservation
Division in setting up administrative approval
for this type operation.

EXAMINER CATANACH: Thank you, Mr.
Kendrick.

MR. STOVALL: H. L. "Babe" Kendrick,
for the record. One other thing, Mr. Examiner,
for the next scheduled hearing Mr. Stogner is the
designated Examiner, and I'm going to regquest
that you walk in the room and take this case
under advisement, since he's the witness in the
case. I think it's probably a little better that
his name not appear on the order.

EXAMINER CATANACH: That can be
arranged. Anything further? Thank you all for
your participation today.

(And the proceedings concluded.)

I do hereby certify that the foregeing is
a complele record of the proceedings in
~J

the Examiner hearingof Case Mo, /L .

heard by me on £ 1952 .
;;Z;buc/ 4 , Examiner

Oil Conservation Division
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO )

COUNTY OF SANTA FE )

I, Carla Diane Rodriguez, Certified
Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public, HEREBY
CERTIFY that the foregoing transcript of
proceedings before the 0il Conservation Division
was reported by me; that I caused my notes to be
transcribed under my personal supervision; and
that the foregoing is a true and accurate record
of the proceedings.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a
relative or employee of any of the parties or
attorneys involved in this matter and that I have
no personal interest in the final disposition of
this matter.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL January 21,

1992.

CARLA DIAN
CSR No. 4
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
ENERGY AND MINERALS DEPARTMENT
OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION

CASE NO., 7029
Order No. R-6388-A

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED

BY THE OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION ON ITS

OWN MOTION TO CONSIDER AMENDMENTS TO ITS
SPECIAL RULES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE
DESIGNATION OF "TIGHT FORMATION,"

PROMULGATED BY DIVISION ORDER NO. R-6388

TO COMPLY WITH FERC ORDER NO. 99, ISSUED

AUGUST 15, 1980, PROMULGATING FINAL REGULATIONS
WITH RESPECT TO SECTION 107 OF THE NGPA.

QRDER OF THE DIVISION

BY THE DIVISION:

This cause came on for hearing at 9 a.m. on QOctober 1,
1980, at Santa Fe, New Mexico, before Examiner Daniel S. Nutter.

NG¥, on this 10th day of February, 1981, the Division
Director, having considered the testimony, the record, and
the reccmmendations of the Examiner, and being fully advised
in the premises,

FINCS:

(1) That due public notice having been given as required
by law, the Division has jurisdiction of this cause and the
subject matter thereof.

(2) That by its Order No. R-6388, dated June 30, 1980,
the New Mexico 0il Conservation Division promulgated its
"Special Rules and Procedures for Tight Formation Designation
Under Section 107 of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978."

(3) That the rules and procedures adopted by said order
were predicated upon the interim requlations issued February 20,
1980, by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and
were intended to be amended should the final regulations
promulgated by the FERC differ substantially from the afore-
said interim regulations.

(4) That by its Order No. 99, issued August 15, 1980, the
FERC promulgated its final rules on high-cost natural fqas
produced from tight formations, said rules to become effective
September 22, 1980.
NMOCD EXHIBIT NO. v
CASE NO. 10432

January 9, 1992
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(5) That said final rules differ in certain respects from
the interim regulations, and certain amendments to the Division's
rules and procedures as promulgated by Order No. R-6388 are
therefore necessary, to wit:

(6) That Section B, Definitions, should be amended by the
addition of the following definitian: T -

6. "Infill drilling"” means any drilling in a
substantially developed formation (or a
portion thereof) subject to requirements
respecting well-spacing or proration units
which were amended by the Division or the
0il Conservation Commission after the
formation (or portion thereof) was substan-
tially developed and which were adopted for
the purpose of more effective and efficient
drainage of the reservoirs in such formation.
Such amendment may provide for the establish-
ment of smaller drilling or production units or
may permit the drilling of additional wells on
the original units.

.(7) That subparagraph c of subsection 1, Section D,
Evidence, should be amended to read in its entirety as follows:

"ec.. a map or list which clearly locates or describes
wells which are currently producing oil or gas,
or both, from the formation within the geographical
area of the formation, and"

(8) That subparagraph d of subsection 1, Section D,
Evidence, should be amended to read in its entirety as follows:

"d, a report of the extent to which an applicant
believes existing State and Federal regulations
will assure that development of the formation
will not adversely affect or impair any fresh
water aquifers (during both hydraulic fracturing
and waste disposal operations) that are being
used or are expected to be used in the foreseeable
future for domestic or agricultural water
supplies; andg"

(9) That old subparagraph e of subsection 1, Section D,
Evidence, reading "any other information. . . . " should be
renumbered "f" and read in its entirety as follows:
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"f. any other information which the Division may
require."

(10) That a new subparagraph e of subsection 1, Section D,
Evidence, should be added, reading in its entirety as follows:

"e. if the formation has been authorized to be
developed by infill drilling prior to the date
of recommendation, information and data demonstra-
ting that the formation cannot be developed
without the incentive price established in
18 CFR §271.703(a)."

(11) That subparagraph c of subsection 2, Section D,
Evidence, should be amended to read in its entirety as follows:

"c. No well drilled into the recommended tight
formation is expected to produce, without
stimulation, more than five barrels of crude
oil per day."

(12) That a new subparagraph e should be added to
subsection 2, Section D, Evidence, reading in its entirety as
follows:

"e, If the formation or any portion thereof was
authorized to be developed by infill drilling
prior to the date of recommencdation and the
Division has information which in its judgment
indicates that such formation or portion subject
to infill drilling can be developed absent the
incentive price established in 18 CFR §271.703(a),
then the Division shall not include such formation
or portion thereof in its recommendation."”

(13) That the "Special Rules and Procedures for Tight
Formation Designations Under Section 107 of the Natural Gas
Policy Act of 1978," promulgated June 30, 1980, by Order
No. R-6388, and amended as described above, should be
re-promulgated reading in their entirety as depicted on
Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

(1) That the "Special Rules and Procedures For Tight
Formation Designations Under Section 107 of the Natural Gas
Policy Act of 1978," as depicted by Exhibit A attached hereto
and made a part hereof, are hereby adopted by the New Mexico
0il Conservation Division, effective immediately.



-4
Case No. 7029
Order No. R-6388-A"

(2) That jurisdiction of this cause is retained for the
entry of such further orders as the Division may deem

necessary.

DONE at Santa Fe, New Mexico, on the day and year herein-
above designated.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
dyL CONSERVATION-DIVISION

/JOE D. RAMEY/4
E Director

SEAL

dr/



ENERGY AND MINERALS DEPARTMENT
QIL CONSERVATION DIVISION
P. 0. Box 2088
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501

SPECIAL RULES AND PRCCEDURES FOR
TIGHT FORMATION DESIGNATIONS UNDER SECTION
107 OF THE NATURAL GAS POLICY ACT OF 1978

Amended 2-1-81
A. General

Applications for tight formation designations under Section
107 of the NGPA and applicable FERC rules and regulations shall
be accepted by the Division at its Santa Fe, New Mexico office
after June 30, 1980. These special rules apply only to
tight formation designations and do not apply to individual
well filing requirements for price category determination.

B. Definitions

1., "Crude 0il" means a mixture of hydrocarbons that
‘exists in the liquid phase in natural underground
reservoirs and remains liquid at atmospheric
pressure after passing through surface separation
facilities.

2. "Division' means the 0il Conservation Division cf the
Energy and Minsrals Departiment of the Silate of New
Mexico.

3. M"FERC" means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

4. "USGS" means the office of the United States Geological
Survey in.Albuquerque, New Mexico.

5. M"Formation" means any geological farmation or portion
thereof described by geological as well as geographical
parameters which is the subject of a tight formation
designation application.

6. "Infill drilling" means any drilling in a
substantially developed formation (or a portion
thereof) subject to requirements respecting well-
spacing or proration units which were amended by
the Division or the 0il Conservation Commission after
the formation (or portion thereof) was substantially

Order No. R-6388-A
Exhibit A



developed and which were adopted for the
purpose of more effective and efficient
drainage of the reservoirs in such formation.
Such amendment may provide for the establish-
ment of smaller drilling or production units
or may permit the drilling of additional wells
on the original units,

Procedure

l. To the extent that the Division's general rules
of procedure for public hearings are not altered
or amended by these special rules, such general
rules of procedure shall be applicable and are
incorporated herein by reference,

2. All applications for tight formation designation in
the State of New Mexico, in which Federal, Indian,
state, or fee lands, or any combination thereof,
are involved, shall be filed with the Division.

3. All applications for tight formation designation
shall be set for public hearing.

4. A complete set of exhibits which an applicant
proposes to offer or introduce at a2 hearing,
together with a statement of the meaning and
purpose of each exhibit, shall be submitted to the
Division (and to the USGS when federal or Indian
lands are inveolved) when the application is filed
or at least 15 days prior to a hearing. These
exhibits shall cover all aspects of the required
evidentiary data described in Section D below.
Three additional complete sets of such exhibits
and statements, enclosed in an unsealed postage-
paid packet, shall also accompany the application
or be presented at the hearing; this packet and
its contents will be forwarded to the FERC by the
Division after the hearing, together with the
Division order recommending disposition of the
application.

5. Where practicable, applications may be consolidated
for hearing at the discretion of the Director of
the Division.

6. Within 15 days after its issuance, any order promul-
gated by the Divisicn pursuant to these special rules
shall be submitted by the Division to the FERC in
accordance with Section 271.705 of the FERC rules



and regulations applicable to NGPA for approval
or disapproval of a tight formation designation.

D. Evidence

l. Evidence offered by an applicant at a hearing shall
include:

a. a map and geographical and geological descriptions
of the area and formation for which the designa-
tion is sought; and

b. geological and engineering data to support the
application; and

c. a map or list which clearly locates or describes
wells which are currently producing oil or gas,
or both, from the formation within the geographical
area of the formation, and

d. a report of the extent to which an applicant
believes existing State and Federal regula-
tions will assure that development of the
formation will not adversely affect or
impair any fresh water aquifers (during both
hydraulic fracturing and waste discosal :
operations) that are being used or are expected
to be used in the fcorseeable future for domescic
or agricultural water supplies; and

e. if the formation has been authorized tc be
developed by infill drilling prior to the date
of recommendation, information and data
demonstrating that the formation cannot be

developed without the incentive price established
in 18 CFR §271.703(a).

f. any other information which the Division may
require.

2. Evidence shall be based on each of the following
geological and engineering guidelines:

a. The estimated average in situ gas permeability,
throughout the pay section, is expected to be 0.1
millidarcy or less.

(1) Permeability may be established and
demonstrated by any customary or acceptable
methods, techniques, or testing acceptable
in the o0il and gas industry.



b. The stabilized production rate, either at
atmospheric pressure or calculated against
atmospheric pressure, of wells completed for
production in the formation, without stimulation,
is not expected to exceed the production rate
determined in accordance with the following

table:
If the average depth to The maximum allowable
the top of the formation production rate (in Mcf/

(in feet): ' day) may not exceed:

but .does not
exceeds: exceed:

0 1000 44
1000 1500 51
1500 2000 59
2000 2500 68
2500 3000 79
3000 3500 91
3500 4000 _ 105
4000 4500 122
4500 5000 141
5000 5500 163
5500 6000 l1es8
60G0 6500 217
6500 7000 251
7000 7500 290
7500 8000 336
8000 8500 388
8500 9000 449
9000 - 9500 519
9500 10000 600

10000 10500 693
10500 11000 802
11000 11500 927
11500 12000 1071
12000 12500 1238
12500 13000 1432
13000 13500 1655
13500 14000 1913
14000 14500 2212

14500 15000 2557

c. No well drilled into the recommended tight
formation is expected to produce, without
stimulation, more than five barrels of crude
0il per day.



dr/

If an application meets the quidelines contained
in subparagraphs 2 b and 2 ¢ above, but does

not meet the guidelines contained in subparagraph
2 a, an applicant may, in the alternative, show
that the formation exhibits low permeability
characteristics and that the incentive price is
necessary to provide reasonable incentive for
production of the natural gas from the formation
due to extraordinary risks or costs associated
with such production.

(1) An application based on the gquidelines
outlined in subparagraph 2 d above shall
include data to support the contention
that the guidelines contained in para-
graph 2 b and 2 c above are met, and in
addition thereto, shall contain:

(a) the types and extent of enhanced
production techniques which are
expected to be necessary, and

(b) the estimated expenditures necessary
for employing those techniques, and

(¢) an estimate of the degree of increass
in production frcm use of such techniques
together with engineering and geological
data to support that estimate.

If the formation or any portion thereof was
authorized to be developed by infill drilling
prior to the date of recommendation and the
Divisigon has information which in its judgment
indicates that such formation or portion subject
to infill drilling can be developed absent the
incentive price established in 18 CFR §271.703(a),
then the Division shall not include such formation
or portion thereof in its recommendation.
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the top of the Mancos “B" Formation is
3,000 feet. The Mancos “B’ Formation
ranges in thickness from 150 to 325 feet.

{11. Discussion of Recommendation

Colorado claims in its submission that
evidence gathered through informaticn
and testimony presented at a public
hearing in Cause No. NG~31 convened
by Colorado on this matter
demonstrates that:

(1) The average in situ gas
permeability throughout the pay section
of the proposed area is not expected 0
exceed 0.1 millidarcy;

{2) The stabilized production rate,
against atmospheric pressure, of wells
completed for production from the
recommended formation, without
stimulation, is not expected to exceed
the maximum allowable production rate
set out in § 271.703(c)(2)(i}(B); and

(3} No well drilled into the
recommended formation is expected to
produce more than five (5) barrels of oil
per day.

Colorado further asserts that existing
State and Federal Regulations assure
that development of this formation wiil
nnt adversely affect any fresh water
aquifers.

Accordingly, pursuant to the authority
delegated to the Director of the Office of
Pipeline and Producer Requlation by
Commission Order No. 97, issued in
Docket No. RM80-68 (45 FIL. 53456,
August 12, 1980}, notice is hereby given
of the proposal submitted by Colorado
that an additional area of the Mancos
“B'"* Formation, as described and
delineated in Colorado’s
recommendation as filed with the
Commiasion, be designated as a tight
formation pursuant to § 271.703.

1V. Public Comment Procedures

Imterested persons may conument un
this proposed rulemaking by submitting
written data, views or arguments to the
Office of the Secretary, Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission, 825 North
Capitol Street, NE., Washington, D.C
20428. on or before August 1, 1983. Er.ch
person submitting a comment snouls
indicate that the comment is being
submitted in Docket No. RM79-76-223
{Colorado-27 Addition), and shoulc give
reasons including supporting data_{or
any recommendations. Comments
chanldincluds the name, titla, mailing
adriress, and telephone number of one
person to whom communications
concerning the proposal may ber
addressed. An original and 14
conformed copies should be filed with
the Secretary of the Commission.
Written comments will be avaiiable for
public inspection at the Commission’s
Division of Public Information, Room

1000, 825 North Capitol Street, NE.,
Washington, D.C., during business
hours. T

Any person wishing to present
testimony, views data, or otherwise
participate at a public hearing should
notify the Commission in writing of the
degire to make an oral presentation and
therefore request a public hearing. Such
request shall specify the amount of time
requested at the hearing.‘Requeasts
should be filed with the Secretary of the
Commission no later than June 30, 1983.

List of Subjects in 18 CFR Part 271

Natural gas, Incentive price, Tight
formations.

(Natural Gas Policy Act of 1878, 15 U.S.C.
3301-3432) -

Accordingly, the Commission
proposes to amend the regulations in
Part 271, Subchapter H, Chapter I, Title
18, Code of Federal Regulations, as set
forth below. in the event Colorado’s
recommendation is adopted.

Kenneth A. Williams,

Director. Office of Pipeline and Producer
Regulation.

PART 271-—[{AMENDED)

Section 271.703 is amended by )
revising paragraph {d}{112} to read as
follows:

§ 271.7C3 Tight {ormations.

» . . - -

(d) Designated -tigbt formations.

- . - » »

(112) Mancos "B” Fermation in
Colorado. RMZ9-76-126 (Colorado-27).

(i} Pelineation of formation. The
Mancos “B"” Formation is located in the
Douglas Creek Arch:area of western
Colorado, in Rio Blancq County. The
Mancos “B" Formation underlies
Township 1 Nortlr, Range 101 West,
Sections 127 through 20 and 29 through
32: Township 1 North, Range 102 West,
Sections 7 through 8 and 13 through 36;
Townships 1 North and South. Range
103 West, All Sections; Towaships 1
North and South, Range 104 West,
Sections 1 through 3, 10 through 15, 22
through 27, and 34 through 36; Townshaip
1 South Range 102 West, Sections 1
throngh 1% 18 throneh 71, and 28 throneh
33 Townshio 2 South, Range 102 vWest,
Sections 4 through 8, N % of Secticn 8, N
4, SE % of Section 9: Township 2 South,
Range 103 West, Sections 1 through 8,
17, 18. 20, 29, 32, and 33! and Township 2
South Range 104 West, Sections 1
through 3 and 10 through 15.

{ii} Depth. The Mancos “B"” Formation
ranges in thickness from 150 to 325 [eet.

The average depth to the top of the
Mancos “B" Formation is 3,000 feet.
(FR Doc. 83-16438 Filed 8-17-83; B:4% am]

BILLING CODE 6717-01-M

18 CFR Part 271

[Docket No. RM79-76-204; New Mexico-25]
High-Cost Gas Produced From Tight
Formations; New Mexico

AGENCY: Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, DOE.

acTion: Notice of Proposed Rulemaking.

SUMMARY: The Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission is authorized by
section 107(c)(5) of the Natural Gas
Policy Act of 1978 to designate certain
types of natural gas as high-cost gas
where the Commission determines that
the gas is preduced under conditions
which present extraordinary risks or
costs. Under section 107(c)(5). the
Commission issued a final regulation
designating natural gas produced from
tight formationg as high-tost gas which
may receive an incentive price {18 CFR
271.703). This rule estaphshed
procedures for jurisdictional agencies Lo
submit to the Commission
recommendations of areas for
designation as iight formaiivns, Tiis
Notice of Proposed Rulemaiing by the
Director of the Office of Pipeline and
Producer Reguiation con:ains the
recommendation of the State of New
Mexico that the Pictured Cliffs
Formation be designated as a tight

" formation under § 271.703(d).

DATE: Comments on the nroposad rule
are due on August 1, 1983. -
Public Hearing: No public hearing is
scheduled in this docket 43 yel. Writlen
requests for a public heanng are uue on

June 30, 1983.

ADDRESS: Comments and requests for
hearing must be filed with the Office of
the Secretary. 825 North Capitol Street,
NE., Waghington. D.C. 20426.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTALT:
Leslie Lawner, (202} 357-8517. or Viclor
Zabel, {202) 357-8618,

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

In the mater of: High-Cost t.as
Produced from Tight Furmations; Docket
Nn RM79.76-204 {(New Mexiro--25)

legued June 13, 1983
I. Background

On May 20. 1983, the State of New
Mexico Energy and Minerals
Department, Oil Conservation Divition
{New Mexico} submitied to the
Commission a recommendation, in

ey

accordance with § 271.703 ¢f the
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Cummission’s regulations (45 FR 56034,
August 22, 1980), thal the Pictured Cliffs
t'ormation jocated in Rio Arriba and
Sandoval Counties, New Mexico, he
vesignsied os 8 tight formation.
FPursuant to § 271.700(c}(4) of the
reguiations this Notice of Propesed
Rulemasing is hereby issued to
ditermine whether New Mexico's
TECON dation that the Pictured Cliffs
Farmatisn .‘.;—‘ desigraled a tight
wadd be ddl)p[P(I The
United Hu vs Department of the
2ot of Land Managemeaent

ronrg i part with New
ymmendaiion,
g that certain areds be

ni biaef areds be deleted,
New Mo xico's recommendation and
snpposiing data are on file with the

Commission and are available for public
Hispedtion.

Doidiale gl s

{i. Description of Recommendation

The recommended area is located in
O e L ‘,u: iun of the San juan
Jasin in RiL Arriha ard Sandoval
Tonte o Mow Vesico. The
T 'nrr‘r'mn' t formation underlin

e

[

t rvan
-l duits unu »

SIS . fortinihic l\ut:'a iAl"
average e ’h tn the top of the Pictured
Cliffs l-.)'mdtmn i3 2.885 feet.

tH. Lhsrusgion ot Recommendation

$ Inits sulmission
co patreraed theoueh
n'r‘r'ﬁ 1on and testimony presented st
1 public hearing in Case No. 774
vonvened by New Mexico on this matter
demonstratey that:
{1} The average in s/fu gas

pers mdu.my thrwbnuuz tire pay section
SV ha g

M P Fuoll) aidd 18 itul eApel ed o
excond 0.1 mi!

)udn\, !

Jtion el
acainst atmosphaoric [‘I‘ESJJIL‘ of wells
completed for production from the
recommended formation, without
stimulation, is not expected to exceed
the maximum aliowable production rate
setout in § 271.703(c}(2)(1)(B): and

NN drilled intc the

ned JGrmation is expected 10

vroduce more than five (5) barrels of vil
rer dav,

New Mexico turther asserts that
exigting State and Federal Regulations

Y Ay

aasure that ds »9“ nment nf Nmz

BLM claima fh at the recommendngd
formaticn underlyving Township 24
North, Range J West Sections 26
tarough 33 and the S;2 of Section 38,
‘-If N

et b the narthoagtemn bDoundar oy

— ot amnme

of New Mexico's proposed area, is
within the geclogic boundaries of the
formation and should be included in the
recommended area.

BLM further recommends that the
portion of the Pictured Cliffs Formation
undLrlv ing Township 22 North. Range 5
West, All Sections; Township 22 North,
Range 4 West, Sections 13 through 36;
Township 22 North, Range 3 West,
Sections 19 through 38, {ocaled in the
southwest corner of New Mexico's
proposed area should be excluded from
tight formation designation. BLM asserts
that this area is not part of the some
producing trend as the rest of the
recommendad formation and has not
been adequately tested, described, or
characterized by the applicant’s data to
warrant inclusion in the recommended
area.

Accordingly, pursuant to the authority
delegated to the Director of the Office of
Pipeline and Producer Regulatian by
Commissicn Order No. 97, issuad in
Docket No. RM80-68 (45 FK 53456,
August 12, 1080}, notice is hereby given
apesal submidited by New

sa that the Pictured ClLfls
Form ition, as descritied and delineqted
in New Mexico's recommendation as
filed with the Commission, be
designated as a tight formation pursuant
n § 271.703.

{V. Public Commen! Procedures

Interested persons may comment on
this proposed rulemaking by submitting
written data, views or arguments to the
Office of the Secretary, Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission, 825 North
Capitol Street, NE., Washing‘on, D.C.
20426, on or before August 1 1983. Each
perscn submitting a comment should
inuicate that e comunent is being
submitted in Docket No. RM79-76-204
{New Mexico-25}, and should give
reasons including supporting data for
any recommendations. Comments
should include the name, title, mailing
address, and telephone number of one
person to whom communications
concerning the proposal may be
addressed. An original and 14
conforined copies shouid be filed with
the Secretary of the Commission.
Written comments will be available for

public inspection at the Conumis ,smn 4
"‘ wun ~e AFT\ Ll - '..t'-._.. P

R Jl-

25 N or'** C "ﬂul S*"”
VWashington, D.C., dunng bubmms
hours,

Anv person wishing to nresent
testimony, views, data, or otherwise
pq"'u‘xputc at a public hearing should
fisiify the Cumnmission in writng of the

desire to make an oral presentation and
therefore request a public hearing. Such
reques! shall specify the amount of time
requested at the hearing. Requests

should be filed with the Secretary of the
Commission no later than June 30, 1983.

List of Subjects in 18 CFR Part 271

Natural gas, Incentive price, Tight
formations.

{Noturai Gus Policy Act of 1978, 15 US.C
3301--3432)

Accordingly, the Commission
propases tu amend the regulations in
Part 271, Subchapter H, Chapter 1, Title
18, Code of Federal Regulations, as set
forth below, in the event New Mexico's
recommendaltion is adopted.

Kenneth A. Williams,

" Director. Office of Pipeline and Producer

Regrilation.

PART 271—[AMENDED]

Section 271.703 is amended by adding
pdiagraph [d)(163) to read as follows:

§271.703 Tight formations.

- - * . L

(d} Desiynated tight formations.

. -« - - L]

33} tituuxh {192) (RESERVED]

: 19’3‘ Pictured Cliffs Formation in New
Mexico. RM79-76-204 (New Mexico-25}.

{i} Delineation of formation. The
Pictured Cliffs Formation is located in
Rin Arriba and Sandoval Counties, New
Mexico. in Township 22 North, Ranges 2,
3, 4, and 5 West, All Sections; Township
23 North, Range 2 West, Sections 5
Onrr\nnh Q 18 *‘ﬂ'r\L"h 21, a!‘d 25 ’)'!X‘OL"LI
38; Townsh;p 23 North Ranges 3, 4, and
5 Wesl. All Sertions; Townehip 2
North. Range 3 West, Section 19, 20, 28
through 35, and S/2 of 36; Township 24
North, Range 4 West, Sections 3 through
10 and 13 through 38; Township 24
North, Range 5 West, All Sections;
Township 25 North, Range 4 West,
Scetions §/2 of 30, 31, and 32; Township
25 North, Range 5 West, Sections 15
through 23, S/2 of 24, and 25 through 36,
NMPM.

{ii) Depth. The Pictured Cliffs
Fornation is defined as that interval at
R ':1 \;f Gy oiGE \u‘luxcu 3,040 teet lo
3.1:1 feet on the Induction Electric Lug
froas the )onn E. Schalk, Cinco Diablos
Well No. 8. The average depth to the top
of the Pictred Cliffs Formation is 2,885
feet.

IR e, 0310428 File 4 547
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
ENERGY AND MINERALS DEPARTMENT
OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING
CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION
DIVISION FOR THE PURPOSE OF
CONSIDERING:

CASE NO. 7746
Order No. R=7200

APPLICATION OF FOUR CORNERS GAS
PRODUCERS ASSOCIATION FOR DESIGNATION
OF A TIGHT FORMATION, RIO ARRIBA AND
SANDOVAL COUNTIES, NEW MEXICO.

ORDER OF THE DIVISION

BY THE DIVISION:

This cause came on for hearing at 9 a.m. on November 23,
1982, at Santa Fe, New Mexico, before Examiner Richard L.
Stamets.

NOW, on this__ 3rd day of February, 1983, the Division
Director, having considered the testimony, the record, and the
recommendations of the Examiner, and being fully advised in the
premises,

FINDS:

(1) That due public notice having been given as required
by law, the Division has jurisdiction of this cause and the
subject matter thereof.

(2) That the applicant, Four Corners Gas Producers
Association, requests that the Division in accordance with
Section 107 of the Natural Gas Policy Act, and 18 C.F.R.
8271.703 recommend to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
that the Pictured Cliffs formation underlying those lands
situated in Rio Arriba and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico,
described on "Exhibit A" attached to this order and herein-
after referred to as the Pictured Cliffs formation, be desig-
nated as a tight formation in said Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission's requlations.

{3) That the Pictured Cliffs formation underlies all of
the above-described lands; that the formation consists of
marine siltstone, clay-filled deposits about 95 feet thick,
consisting of near shore bars which are lenticular, ribbon-
like deposits with limited areal extent; that better permea-
bility is encountered on the crests of these near shore bars
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where the sands are better developed than the areas off the
bar crests where the sands become siltier and more clay-
filled; and that the top of such formations is found at an
average depth of 2685 feet below the surface of the area
set forth in "Exhibit A" attached to this order.

(4) That the type section for the Pictured Cliffs
formation for the proposed tight formation designation is
found at a depth of approximately 3046 feet to 3141 feet on
the Induction Electric Log from the John E. Schalk, Cinco
Diablos Well No. 6 located in Unit D of Section 14, Township
23 North, Range 4 West, Rio Arriba County, New Mexico.

(5) That the area for which a tight formation designa-
tion is sought is comprised of approximately 1464 proration
units on which 466 Pictured Cliffs wells have been drilled
of which 94 have been abandoned.

(6) That with less than one-third of the available
gas spacing units being developed, the area proposed for
designation may be characterized as cne of low to moderate
development.

(7) That approximately 60 gas wells have been completed
in the proposed area since February 20, 1980, the date of
promulgation of interim FERC rules on high-cost natural gas
produced from tight formations.

(8) That at the average depth for the Pictured Cliffs
formation in the proposed area, the maximum qualifying un-
stimulated production rate is 79 MCFD.

(9) That unstimulated natural production rates were
available from seven producible wells completed after February
20, 1980.

(10) That one well had an unstimulated potential of
259 MCFD while the remainder averaged 16.5 MCFD.

(11) That core analyses were available on nine wells,
two of which were drilled after February 20, 1980, within the
proposed area.

(12) That one cored well was a dry hole and that data
should not be used in determining average in situ permeability.

(13) That one well exhibited average laboratory permea-
bility of 2.64 millidarcies.
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(14) That the remaining core derived in situ permea-
bility averaged 0.0l11 millidarcies.

(15) That based on an analysis of available data from
existing wells within the proposed area and utilizing generally
and customarily accepted petroleum engineering technigques and
measurements:

(a) the estimated average in situ gas permeability
throughout the pay section of the Pictured
Cliffs formation is expected to be 0.1 milli-
darcy or less; and

(b) the stabilized production rate, against
atmospheric pressure of wells completed for
production in the Pictured Cliffs formation,
without stimulation, is not expected to exceed
production levels determined by reference to
well depth, as found in the table set out in
18 C.F.R. 8§271.703 (2) (B) of the regulations;
and

{(c) no well drilled into the Pictured Cliffs
formation is expected to produce, without
stimulation, more than five barrels of crude
oil per day.

(16) That within the proposed area there is a recognized
aquifer being the Cjo Alamo, located over 200 feet above the
Pictured Cliffs formation.

(17) That existing State of New Mexico and Federal
Regulations relating to casing and cementing of wells will
assure that development of the Pictured Cliffs formation will
not adversely affect the said aquifer.

(18) That the Pictured Cliffs formation should be
recommended to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission for
designation as a tight formation.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

(1) That it be and hereby is recommended to the Fede:ral
Energy Regulatory Commission pursuant to Section 107 of tre
Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978, and 18 C.F.R. §271.703 of the
regulations that the Pictured Cliffs formation underlying
those lands in Rio Arriba and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico,
as described on "Exhibit A" attached to this order, be desig-
nated as a tight formation.
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(2) That jurisdiction of this cause is retained for the
entry of such further orders as the Division may deem necessary.

DONE at Santa Fe, New Mexico, on the day and year herein-
above designated.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
IL CONSERVA DIVISION

JOE D. RAMEY
Director

SEAL

fd/



Four Corners Gas Producers Association
Five Lakes Canyon Tight Formation Area
Rio Arriba and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico

TOWNSHIP 22

NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 1

TOWNSHIP 22

through 36: All

NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 1

TOWNSHIP 22

through 36: Aall

NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 1

TOWNSHIP 22

through 36: All

NORTH, RANGE 5 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 1

TOWNSHIP 23

through 36: All

NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST,

NMPM

5
16
25

Sections
Sections
Sections

TOWNSHIP 23

through 9: Aall
through 21: All
through 36: All

NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 1

TOWNSHIP 23

through 36: 2all

NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 1

TOWNSHIP 23

through 36: Aall

NORTH, RANGE 5 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 1

TOWNSHIP 24

through 36: ALl

NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 19
Sections 29
Section 33:

TOWNSHIP 24

and 20: All
through 32:
Ww/2

All

NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST,

NMPM

3
13

Sections
Sections

TOWNSHIP 24

through 10: All
through 36: All

NORTH, RANGE 5 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 1

TOWNSHIP 25

through 36: All

NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST,

NMPM

Section 30:
Sections 31

TOWNSHIP 25

S/2

and 32: All

NORTH, RANGE 5 WEST,

NMPM

Sections 15
Section 24:
Sections 25

Containing a total o

through 23: All
S/2
through 36: All

£f 234,240 acres, more

Exhibit A
Order No. R-7200

or less.
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United States Department of the Interio

BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT
505 Marquette Avenue, NW, Suite 815
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

vl

LAY 03 B3

Mr. W. Perry Pearce

0i1 Conservation Division
State of New Mexico

P. 0. Box 2088

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Dear Mr. Pearce:

This jurisdictional agency concurs in part, in the recommendation of the
State of New Mexico, Case No. 7746, Order No. R-7200, dated February 3,
1983, that the Pictured Cl1iffs formation underlying the described lands
in subject order in Rio Arriba and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico, be
designated as a Section 107 tight formation.

We recommend that certain areas be included and other areas be deleted as
outlined in the following paragraphs.

According to Mr. McCord's testimony, the boundaries of the Five Lakes
Canyon Tight Gas Area are based on acreage position, not on engineering

or geologic parameters. However, earlier in his testimony Mr. McCord

does refer to boundaries. He describes the northeast edge as bounded by
the extensively developed South Blanco Pictured Cliffs field. This
boundary is reasonable except where parts of the Lindrith Federal Unit

are excluded. It is recommended that sections 26-35 and $% section 36,

T. 24 N., R. 3 W., be included in the tight gas area. The Federal interest
would not be served by arbitrarily excluding Federal units.

Mr. McCord describes the Pictured Cliffs as '"nearshore bars aligned north-
west-southeast" and also says that the "nearshore bars within the proposed
area are extremely lenticular, ribbon-l1ike deposits with a very Timited
southwest-northeast areal extent.” 1In view of this limited areal extent,
it is unreasonable to include virtually untested areas which are several
miles southwest from the edge of the main trend.

The annlicant did not suonly us with isopach maps or other information

which would delineate tfe natural edge of the Ballard Pictured Cliffs field.
However, electric logs of wells drilled through the Pictured Cliffs south

of the developed portioii of the field were studied in section 19, T. 22 N.,
R. 2 W., section 16, T. 22 N., R. 3 W.(A'), section 8, T. 22 N., R. 4 W.,
section 1, T. 22 N., R. 5 W., section 36, T. 23 N., R. 5 W., and section 35,
T. 23 N., R. 6 N. The Pictured Cliffs in these wells appears to be poorly
developed, containing a greater proportion of clay and having higher water
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saturations than wells along the main trend of the field. Further south-
west of this line of wells the sands are again better developed indicating
another set of nearshore bars.

Although the Pictured C1iffs sands may be tight in the southwest corner of
the proposed area, our data suggests that it is not part of the same trend
as the Ballard Pictured Cliffs. As such, these sands have not been ade-
quately tested, described or characterized by the data presented by the
applicant. Therefore, we disagree with that portion of the State order
which defines the boundaries and recommend that the following lands not

be included in the proposed tight gas sands area:

T. 22 N., R. 5 W., all
T. 22 N., R. 4 W., sections 13-36
T. 22 N., R. 3 W., sections 19-36

This results in a southwestern boundary which more closely approximates
the trend of the deposit.

It is requested that this concurrence and recommendation be included with
the package submitted to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Sincerely yours,

¢ﬁbrn4gL/‘45LISE:§j;{;ZZZ§Ez>

James W. Shelto
/ Assistant District Manager
for Minerals
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| Al
In order to accurately present this matter to the Commission for decision,
the Bureau of Land Management's current position regarding the above described
acreage is requasted.

Very truly yours,

Z?,(NM‘{ # St

ward Kilchrist, Director
Division of Producer Audits
and Pricing

Enclosure

cc: W, Perry Pearce
Legal Counsel to the 0il
Conservation Division
Department of Energy and Minerals
P.0. Box 2088
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

William F. Carr

Campbell, Byrd, & Black P.A.
Jefferson Place

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Ernest L. Padilla
P.0O. Box 2523
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Jeffrey E. Jackson

Attorney at Law

P.0. Box 3249, Terminal Annex
Los Angeles, Califormia 90051

John H. Belson

Regulatory Affairs

P.O0. Box 3249, Terminal Annex
Los Angeles, California 90051

J.S. Charles, Vice President
Regulatory Affairs

Northwest Pipeline Corporation
P.0. Box 1526

Salt Lake City, Utah 84110

Mary Duffin, Esquire

Northwest Pipeline Corporation
P.0. Box 1526

Salt Lake City, Utah 84110

Kim M. Clark, Esquire

Akin, Gump, Strauss, Hauer & Feld
1333 New Hampshire Avenue, N.W.
Suite 400

Washington, D.C. 20036



United States Department of the Interior

BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT
ALBUQUERQUE DISTRICT OFFICE
505 Marquette, N.W,

P.O. Box 6770
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87197-6770

April 16, 1984

Mr. Howard Kilchxist

Director

Division of Producer Audits and Pricing
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
825 North Capitol Street

Washington, DC 20426

Dear Mr. Kilchrist:

This letter is in reply to your inquiry of March 28, 1984, regarding Docket
No. RM79-76-204, New Mexico~25, designation of Pictured Cliffs Formatiom in
Rio Arriba and Sandoval Counties as a tight formatiom under the Natural Gas
Policy Act of 1978.

We have reviewed the application of the Four Cormers Gas Producers Association
and this jurisdictional agency reaffirms its original recommendation that the
area in question be deleted. Well-log correlations show that there are
geologic limits zo the Ballard and South Blanco Pictured Cliffs fields; the
test data which describe these pools are not valid beyond the limits of the
pools. Therefore, all of towaship T. 22 N., R. 5 W., sections 13-36, T. 22
N., R. 4 W., and sections 19-36, T. 22 N., R. 5 W., have not been adequately
tested, described or characterized by the data presented by the applicant
because they lie beyoud the limits of either of these pools. The data
presented do not prove this area to be tight. This area should not be
included in the tight sands area until data is submitted which specifically
tests this area and proves that it meets the requirements for a tight

formation.

Sincerely yours,

For District Manager
ce:

NM 0il Comservation Division
P.Q. Box 2

Santa Fe, NM 87501

Mr, William F. Carr
Campbell, Byrd & Black, PA
P.0. Box 2208

Santa Fe, NM 87501

Ms. Mary Duffin, Esquire
Northwest Pipeline Corporation
P.0. Box 1526

Salt Lake City, UT 84110
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James W. Shelton

Assistant District Manager for Minerals
United States Department of the Interior
Bureas of Land Management

505 Marquette Avenue, N.W., Suite 813
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

In Re: Docket No. EM79-76-=204
(New Mexico~25)
Pictured Cliffs Formation
Rio Arriba and Sandoval Counties

Dear Mr. Shelton:

On May 20, 1983, the Commission received the recommendation by the State
of New Mexico, Eaergy and Minerals Departmeat, O0il Conservation Division (New
Mexico), that the Pilctured Cliffs Formation located in portions of Rio Arriba
and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico, be designated as a tight formation. A Notice
of Proposed Rulemaking concerning the recommendation was issued on June 13, 1983,
and established a comment period ending July 30, 1983.

Included as part of New Mexico's recommendation is your letter of May 3, |
1983, which concurred in part with the recommendatiocn. Your letter additionally
recommended that certain areas be included and others be deleted as discussed
below,

With respect to areas which you recommend be added you indicate that cer-
tain Federal units appeared to be arbitrarily excluded based on acreage positions
However, based on geologic parameters you believe these areas should be included.
Our review of the data also indicates that Sections 26 through 28, E 1/2 of
Section 33, Sections 34 and 35, and the § 1/2 of Section 36, Township 24 North,
Range 3 West meet the geologic criteria and should be included in the area for
consideration. The inclusion of this acreage is reflected in the Notice of
Proposed Rulemaking issued on Jume 15, 1983.

With respect to the area which you indicate should be deleted your letter
states that "although the Pictured Cliffs sands may be tight in the southwest
corner of the proposed area, our data suggests thac it is not part of the same
trend as the Ballard Pictured Cliffs.” The Commission's guidelines in this
regard require only that the area being recommended exhibit tight formation
characteristics as defined in the regulations. These guidelines would not
necessarily require thact the designated area be in the same geologic trend.
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The comment period with respect to this formation ended on July 31, 1983.
One comment opposed to New Mexico's recommendation was timely filed by Nortiwest
Pipeline Corporation and one comment opposed to New Mexico's recommendation
was untimely filed by Southern California Gas Company and Pacific Lighting Gas
Supply Company (coplies attached). We have requested that Northwest furnish
the data referred to in its comments.

In light of your recommendation as well as the comments of Northwest Pipe-—
line Corporation, Southern California Gas Company, and Pacific Lighting Gas
Supply Company, we will continue to weigh the data submitted by New Mexico to
the extent that it indicates that the whole of the proposed area meets the
Commission's guidelines for designation as a tight formation.

Should you have additional evidence or comments regarding the exclusion of
the soutlwest portion of the recommended area we would be most happy to counsider
them. Thank you for your cooperation.

Very truly yours,

/5

Howard Kilchrist, Director
Division of Producer Audits
and Pricing

Attachments (2)

cec: W. Perry Pearce
Legal Counsel to the 011
Conservation Division
Department of Energy and Minerals
P.0. Box 2088
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

William F. Carr

Campbell, Byrd, & Black P.A.
Jefferson Place

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Ernest L. Padilla
P.0. Box 2523
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Jef frey E. Jackson

Attorney at Law

P.0. Box 3249, Terminal Annex
Los Angeles, California 90051
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ce:

John H. Belson

Regulatory Affairs

P.0. Box 3249, Terminal Annex
Los Angeles, California 90051

J.S. Charles, Vice President
Regulatory Affairs

Northwest Pipeline Corporation
P.0. Box 1526

Salt Lake City, Utah 84110

Mary Duffin, Esquire

Northwest Pipeline Corporation
P.0. Box 1526

Salt Lake City, Utah 84110

Kim M. Clark, Esquire

Akin, Gump, Strauss, Hauer & Feld
1333 Nev Hampshire Avemie, N.W.
Suite 400

Washington, D.C. 20036



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 2 HMME‘O—-UQ*

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

g C.r.R. Part 271
High-Cost Gas Produced from Tight Formations; Final Rule

Docket No, RM79-76-204 (New Mexi1co - 25}
——

ORDER NOU. 397

(Issued September 21, 1984)

AGENCY @ Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

ACIION @ Final rule

SUMMAKY : Under sectlon 107(c¢)(5) of the Natural Gas Policy
Act of 1974, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission desig-
nates certain types ot natural gas as high-cost ygyas. High-
cost ygas is produced under conditions which present extraor-
dinary risks or costs and once designated may receive an
incentive price. Under section 107(c)(S), the Commission
issued a rule designating natural gas produced from tight
tormati1ons as high-cnst gas. Jurisdictional agencies may
submit recommendations of areas tor designation as tight
formations. Here the Commission adopts the recommendation
by the New Mexico tnergy and Minerals Department, and the

U. 5. Bureau of Land Management that a portion of the Pictured
Clifts Fotmation located in Rio Arriba and Sandoval Counties,
New Mexi1co, be designated as a tight formation.

EFFECTIVE DATE : This rule is eftective October 22, 1984,

FOR FUKRTHER INFORMATION CONTACT : Kevin R. Rees, (202)
357 5420 or walter Lawson, (202) 357-8556.

DC-C-113

UNITHED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL ENERGY REGHULATORY COMMISSION

defore Commissioners: Raymond J. 0O'Connor, Chairman;
Georigrana Sheldon, A. . Sousa,
Oliver G. Rtchard [1L and Charles G. Stalon.

High-Cost Gas Produced ) Docket No.RM79-76-204
trom Tight Formations } (New Mexico - 25)

ORDER NO. 197
FINAL RULE

(Issued September 21, 1484)

T.  BACKGROUND
Based on a recommendation made by the New Mexico Eneryy
and Minerals Department, 0il Coanservation Division {(New
Mexico), the Commission amends 1ts reygulations W\ to desiynate
a portion of the Pictured Clitts Formation located in Rio
Arriba and Sandoval Counties, New Mexico, as a designated
tight tormation eligible tor incentive pricing. The Director
ot the Office of Pipeline and Producer Reyulation (Director)

issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking proposing the

designation on June 15, 1984, 2/

1/ 18 C.F.R. § 271.703(d) (1981}).

2/ 48 rFed. Reg. 28,113 (June 20, 1983).
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The . Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management

(HLM), 3/ supports the New Mexico recommendation in part, but
argues that certain other areas should be included in the
recommendat 1on and that others be deleted., BLM recommends that
the part of the Pictured Cliffs Formation underlying Towaship
24 North, Range } West, Sections 26 through 35 and South 1/2 ot
section 36, be included in the tight formation designation
{sections 29 through 32 and the West 1/2 of Section 33 were
included in the New Mexico recommendation).

However, BLM also recommends that the portion of the
Pictured Clitfs PFormation underlying Township 22 North, Range 3
Wwest, Sections 19 through 36; Township 22 North, Range 4 West,
Sections 13 through 16; and Township 22 North, Range 5 West,
all sections, be deleted trom the tight formation designation.
BLM asserts that this portion, located in the southwest corner
ot New Mexico's proposed area, is not part of the same trend
found 1n the Ballard Pictured Clitts tield and has not been
adequately tested, described or characterized by the Jata
contained in the application,

BLM describes the portion of the Pictured Clitts Formation
it supports as belng nearshore bars aligned northwest to south-

east, whereas the area 1t opposes is described as nearshore

3/ Portions of the land involved herein are Federal lands and
theretore the BLM was involved in the proceeding.

Docket No. RM79-76-204 -~ 3 -

bars which are extremely lenticular, tibbon-like deposits with
a very limited southwest-northeast areal extent, BLM asserts
that because of the limited areal extent of the deposits, it
is unreasonable to include the untested acreage found several
miles southwest from the edge ot the main trend.

Il. SUMMARY OF COMMENTS

Several comments were received in response to the Notice
of Proposed Rulemaking. Southern Calitornia Gas Supply Company
{SoCal) and the Pacific Lighting and Gas Supply Company (PLGS)
filed joint comments opposing the New Mexico recommendation.
The Northwest Pipeline Corporation (Northwest) also filed
comments opposing New Mexico's recommendation.

SoCal and PLGS objected to the recommendation by New Mexico
on the grounds that there was insufticient well test data and
an inadequate analysis to support 1ts assertion that the recon-
mended area qualitied as a tight formation. SoCal and PLGS
assert that the applicant before New Mexico attempted to arrive
at the expected 1n situ permeability hased on core analyses
trom only ftour wells. SoCal and PLGS argue turther that while
this applicant chose Lo rely more on an analysis using Darcy's
equation to estimate the recommended area's permeability rather
than the core method, flow rate data trom only six wells were
available tor the analysis. SoCal and pPLGS feel this does not
constitute sutticient ami adequdte reservoilr data to properly

evaluate an area ot nearly 370 square miles,
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SoCal and PLGS also argue that the applicant excluded
certain unfavorable data from its calculations, resulting in

an erroneously low expected average in situ permeability.

SoCal and PLGS state that the analytical approach for deter-

mining the average in situ permeability under the regulations

is to calculate the arithmetic average of the permeabilities of
all productive wells in the recommended area. SoCal and PLGS
assert that the applicant excluded the unstimulated flow rate
from one of the seven wells because the applicant believed that
the particular well had penetrated a highly productive sweet
spot uncharacteristic of the recommended formation, yet included
rates from two wells whose production rate was too small to
measure.  soCal and PLGS assert that the applicant did not
submit enough supporting data to justify the exclusion.

SoCal and PLGS assert that the applicant's use of an average
net pay thickness of 41 feet is inappropriate for such a non-
homogeneous formation such as the Pictured Cliffs formation,
because it does not reflect localized differences in net pay
thickness, static and flowing bottom hole pressures, wellbore
radius and near wellbore damage of individual wells. SoCal and
PLGS state that they have summarized the core data and have arrived
at an averaqge pay thickness ot 23 feet. SoCal and PLGS assert that

is used, aluny with the atiihmetic average of

the unstimulated flow rate for all productive wells of 51.2 Mcf
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per day, it arrives at an estimated in situ permeability of
0.24 millidarcy, exceeding the 0.1 millidaircy guideline found
in§ 271.703(c)(2) (1) (A).

Oon August 1, 1983, the Commission also teceived comments
from Northwest Pipeline Corporation (Northwest) in which
Northwest expressed concetn about the development and permea-
bility levels of the acreage found in the South Blanco Pictured
Cliffs and Ballard pPictured Clitfs Pools as established by
New Mexico Order Nos. 156 and 577 respectively. 4/ On
August 31, 1983, the Commission requested any additional data
Northwest had concerning these areas and any permeability data
Northwest felt was pertinent. On October 12, 1983, the
Commission received the additional data from Northwest.,

Northwest submits that New Mexico Spacing Ovder No.
R-1670, issued May 23, 1960, allows the drilling of tour wells
per section in these pools. Northwest submits of the 65
sections contained in the Blanco Pictured Cliffs Pool, 29% are
1008 developed, 15% are 75% developed and 37% are partially
deve loped. In the Ballard Pictured Cliffts Pool, containing
103 sections, there is 100% development on 46% of the sections,
9% 9f the remaining sections are 75% developed, 4% of these

sections are 66% developed, and 22 % ot the sections are 50%

4/ New Mexico Order Nos. 156 and 577 were issued on
May 20, 1952, and on February 9, 19%%5 rvespectively,
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developed, Altogethe:, Northwest submits 81% of the sections
in the two pools are at least 50% developed, Northwest there-
fore concludes rhat incentive prices for tight tormation gas
has not been needed for the development of these two areas and
that 1t 1s not necessaty tor the future development of the area
as well,

Northwest also submits that i1t has reviewed production
history trom 19 wells 1n the South Blanco Pictured Cliffs Pool
and of 6 wells in the Ballavd Pictured Clif€s Pool. Northwest
calculates the permeability of the recommended formation, based

on 1ts review, to be an averaye of 0,113 millidarcy.

I, DISCUSSION

A. HBLM's Recommendation

The Commission has reviewed BLM's comments and finds that
the additional area that HLM proposes to include 10 the recom-
mended area 1s supported by the evidence submitted. The
Commission theretore includes this avrea 1n the area designated
as a tight tormation,

The Commission, however, disajrees with BLM's assertions
that certain a:eas tecommended by New Mexico should be deleten,
Review of the data shows (he Pretuted Clitts Formation in
the proposed area 1t be a continuous Lithologic unit ot
tntertingered sand lenses tecognizable on electiic logs of
werlls th:oughoat the ecommemled area. fhe subject formation,

a stlty sandstone with clay tilled pore spaces, was deposited

Docket No. RM79-76-204 -7 -

in a regressive marine environment by the lLate (retaceous sea.
The same physical forces responsible ftor depositing the near-
shore bars found near the northeast boundary wete operating
during the deposition ot the nearshore bars in the southwest
portion ot the proposed area. Consequently, we believe that
format ion characteristics in the developed nearshoure bar trend
in the northeastern portion, from which most of the raw data
originates, can reasonably be used to appraoximate the charac-
teristics in the adjaceat nearshore bar system believed to
underlie the sparsely drilled southwestern portioa,

The Commission's quidelines requirte that a recommended
arva exhibit or be expected to exhibit tight tormation charac-
teristics., They Jdo not go so tar as to require that data
exist in the same degree in all parts of the tormation as in
the northeast portion of the recommended aroea. [t this were

i
sa, then undeveloped areas, for which the 1acentive price is
wmost needed, could never be designated as tght tormatayons,
The Commisstion believes that the southwestern portion should
not he deleted trom the tight (ormation designation, since
vhaough evidence exists to lead to g tinding that this area is
exprcted to exhibit vight formation charactecisties,

N,  SoCal and PLGC's Comments.

The Commission also tinds SoCal and Socomment s

UNPEr Sudsive, commission teview ot the dat 4 Ssabmirted indicates

omolons ta the

that the tlow cates from the aweet Lottt o woere
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rest of the recunnended arca and Finds that exclusion of the
tlow rate from the "sweet spot™ 15 justified in this particularc
case. Furthermore, the Commission believes that the applicant's
approximation of 4] teet for the net pay thickness of the pay
sect1on 1s supported hy the evidence avallable. Based on data
trom nine wells producing in the subject cross section, exclu -
ding the flow rate from the sweet spot area, the Commission
arrived at an aritthmetic averaqge for the unstimulated stabilized
tlow rate of 16.95 Mct. The Commission finds that SoCal and
PLGS' assertion that the unstinulated tlow rate was 51.2 Mof

was actually an unstabilized rate of flow and aot 1n accordance
with the guidelines in § 271.703(c)(2)(i1)(B). Furthermoce, that
sect lon of the Commission's regulations requires the applicant
to show a stabitized prestimulated flow rate ot 79,5 Mct tor the
subject formation, a fiqure above SoCal and PLGS' estimated
tate ot tlow, Additionally, the Comnission used 1t4 estinate

ot the unstimalated tlow rate and the applicant’®s estimation

ot a net pay sectioa of 41 teet in Parcy's equation and arrived
At an expected average 10 sita permeability ot (018 millidarcy,

15 well below the D1 milbidarcy requirement found in

§ 2710030 2V 00 tA) .

Northwest's Comments

i t v ain Giéas

e : AU, . ot
We fvow it PR Y

have heen substantially developed and should be deleted from
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this designation. Section 271,703(c)(2)(1) (D) provides that no
area should be included 1n a recommendation it that avea was
autho. ized to be developed by 1nfull dialling prior to the date
of the recommendation, and 1information exists to indicate that
the area can he developed absent the 1ncentive price, We have
found this "i1nformation” to exi1st 1n cases where the ared was
substantially developed at the taime an infili d:ra1lling ovder
was issued. 5/ In this case, there has been no 1ntill drilling
ovder and so there 15 no basts to exclude any aredas undet

§ 271.703(c)(2)(i)(D). Additionally, our :eview shows that

88 percent ot the existing wells 1n the Hallard Prcotuved

Clitts and South Hlanco Pictured ClLitts Pools were deilled

and completed tn the tight formation poaaor to July 16, 1979,
the date at which the 1ocentive price was established,
Accordingly, prodaoction trom these wells 1n the taight formation
will probably not guality tor the NGPA scetion 107 incentive
price, See § 271.703(b)(2) and (3)., Furthermo: ¢, as stated

above, the Commission estiunates the expected in s1tu permea-

bility to be 0Ll8 millidarcy for the designated area.

w\mevanx¢~23.21<c|~a<Afo_:~m13|_.T:zdx~a~x.rxm3m.
yles 1977-1981 § 30,228 (i9H1), vrde: i24;
Docket No., RM79-76, (Colorado- 1) FERC Stats. & Reys.
[Reqg. Preambles 1977-1981) ¥ ¢+ '44 (1981), urder 137;

Commission Otder Denying Reher cng, order 137-A,
15 FERC § 61,277 (1981),
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IV. CONCLUSION Section 271.703 is amended to read as follows:
#ased on the above, the Commission finds that the evidence . 1. The authority citation for Part 271 reads as follows:
submitted by New Mexico supports the assertion that the Pictured Authority: Department of Energy Organization Act,
42 U.S.C. §§ 7101 et seq.; Natural Gas Policy Act
Clitts formation meets the guidelines contained in § 271.703(c)(2). of 1978, 15 U.S.c. §§ 3301 - 3432; Administrative

Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 553,
Thus, the Commission adopts the New Mexico recommendation, with
2. Section 271.703(d) is amended by adding paragraph (179}
the additional area recommended by BLM.
to read as follows:

This amendment shall become etfective October 22, 1984, § 271.703 Tight Formations.
L.ist of Subjects in )B_(.F.R. Part 271: . * . * *
Natural gas, Incentive price, Tight formations. (d) Designated tight formations.
In consideration of the toreyoing, Part 271 of Sub- * . .
chapter H, Chapter 1, Code of Federal Regulations, is (179) Pictured Clitts Formation in New Mexico.
amended as set torth below, RM79-76-204 (New Mexico - 25).

(i} Delineation of tormation. The Pictured Cliffs

vwv\ nz.. {‘ommlssion T o m T T
Formation is located in Rio Arriba and Sandoval Counties,

New Mexico, in Township 22 North, Range 2, 3, 4 and 5 West,

Sections 5 through 9, 16 through 21, and 25 through 36;
Ken il ¥, Llank

Kenneth F, Plumb,
Secretarvy. Township 24 North, Range 3} West, Sections 19, 20, 26

Township 23 North, Ranges 3, 4 and 5 West, All Sections;

through 35, and S/2 of 136; Township 24 North, Range 4
West, Sections 3 through 10 and 13 through 36; Township

24 North, Range 5 West, All Sections; Township 25 North,
Range 4 Wesl, Sections /2 of 30, 31 and 12;: Township 25
North, Ranyge 5 West, sections 19 through 23 572 of 24, and

25 through 30, NMPM.
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(11) Depth, The Picture Clitts Formation 1s defined as
that tnterval at a4 depth ot approximately 3,046 teet to 3,141
teet on the Indoction Electere Log trom the John E. Schalk,
Cinco Diablos Well No. 6. The average depth to the top ot

the Pictured Clitts Formation s 2,68% teet.
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within 30 days after the time allowed for
filing a protest, the instant request shall
be treated as an application for
authorization pursuant to section 7 of
the Natural Gas Act.

Lois D. Cashelil,

Secretary.

{FR Doe. 91-26572 Filed 114-91; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6717-01-M

{Docket No. JD92-00842T New Mexico-29]

The United States Department of the
interior, Bureau of Land Management;
Receipt of Determination Designating
Tight Formation

October 29, 1991.

Take notice that on October 24, 1991,
the United States Department of the
Interior, Bureau of Land Management
(BLM), submitted the above-referenced
notice of determination to the
Commission, pursuant to § 271.703(c)(3)
of the Commission's regulations, that the
Pictured Cliffs Formation in a portion of
Rio Arriba County, New Mexico,
qualifies as a tight formation under
section 197(b) of the Natural Gas Policy
Act of 1978 {(NGPA). The notice covers
approximately 76,800 acres. Of this total,
roughly 30,720 acres fall within the
Carson National Forest. The remaining
acreage, approximately 46,080 acres,
falls within the Jicarilla Apache Indian
Regervation. The recommended area
consists of a!l of Sections 4-9, 16-21, and
28-33 in T29N, R3W (NMPM), all of
Sections 1-36 in T29N, R4W (NMPM), all
of Sections 1-36 in T30N, R3W {(NMPM),
ail of Sections 1, 2, 11~14, 23-286, 35 and
36 in T30N, R4W (NMPM), and all of
Sections 4-9, 16-21, and 28-33 in T31N,
R3IW (NMPM). The notice of
determination also contains the BLM's
findings that the referenced portion of
the Pictured Cliffs Formation meets the
requirements of the Commission's
regulations set forth in 18 CFR part 271.

The application for determination is
available for inspection, except for
raaterial which is confidential under 18
CFR 275.206. at the Federal Energy
Pegulatory Commission, 825 North
Capitol Street, NE., Washington, DC
20428. Persens objecting to the
determination may file a protest, in
accordance with 18 CFR 275.203 and
275.204, within 20 days after the date
this notice is issued by the Commission.
Lois D. Cashell,

Secretary.
[FR Douc. 4126573 Filed 11-4-91. 6:45 am]
‘LLING CODE 6717-01-M

[Docket No. TM92-4-20~-0001

Algonquin Gas Transmission Co.;
Proposed Changes in FERC Gas Taritf

QGctober 29, 1991.

Take notice that Algonquin Gas
Transmission Company {“Algonquin™)
on Octeber 25, 1991, filed proposed
changes in its FERC Gas Tariff, Third
Revised Volume No. 1, as set forth in the
revised tariff sheets, to be effective
November 25, 1991.

Appendix A Tariff Sheets

Fourth Revised Sheet No. 92
Third Revised Sheet No. 93
Fourth Revised Sheet No. 674D
Third Revised Sheet No. 674G
Third Revised Sheet No. 874K
Third Revised Sheet No. 874L
Third Revised Sheet No. 674M
Third Revised Sheet No. 674N
Third Revised Sheet No. 6740

Appendix D Tariff Sheet
Substitute Fourth Revised Sheet No. 92

Algonquin states that the purpose of
this filing is to update the amount of
take-or-pay charges to be billed to
Algonguin by CNG Transmission
Corporation and National Fuel Gas
Supply to be recovered by Algonquin by
operation of § 33.7 of the General Terms
and Conditions to Algonquin’s FERC
Gas Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. 1.
Algonquin also states that the revised
take-or-pay surcharges are the result of
revised allocation methods imposed by
its pipeline suppliers in response to the
Commission’s Order No. 528 and 528-A.

Algonquin noies that copies of this
filing were served upon each affected
party and interested state commissions.

Any person desiring to be heard or to
protest said filing should file a motion to
intervene or protest with the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission, 825
North Capitol Street, NE., Washington,
DC 20428, in accordance with §3% 385.214
and 385.211 of the Commission’s Rules
and Regulations. All such motions or
protzsts should be filed on or before
November 5, 1991. Protests will be
considered by the Commission in
determining the appropriate action to be
taken but will not serve to make
protestants parties to the proceeding.
Any person wishing to become a party
must file a motion to intervene. Copies
of this filing are on file with the
Commission and are available for public
inspection.

Lois D. Cashell,

Secretary.

[FR Dac. 51-26574 Filed 11-4-91; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6717-01-

[Docket No. TM92-2-4-0001

Granite State Gas Transmission, Inc.;
Proposed Changes in Rates

October 30, 1991.

Take notice that on Qctober 28, 1991,
Granite State Gas Transmission, Inc.
{Granite State} 300 Friberg Parkway.
Westborough, Massachusetts 01581
tendered for filing Seventh Revised
Sheet No. 25 in its FERC Gas Tariff,
Second Revised Volume No. 1, for
effectiveness on October 3, 1991.

According to Granite State, it provides
storage services for Bay State Gas
Company and Northern Utilities, Inc.,
under its Rate Schedule 5-1 with storage
capacity provided in a facility operated
by Penn-York Energy Corporation
(Penn-York) pursuant to Penn-York's
Rate Schedule SS-1.

Granite State further states that, on
June 28, 1991, Penn-York filed a motion
under section 4(e) of the Natural Gas
Act to make effective on July 1, 1991, the
suspended rates for its Rate Schedule
$S-1 storage service, pending in Docket
No. RP91-88-000. It is further stated
that, in an order issued August 2, 1991,
the Commission accepted Penn-York's
motion rates, subject to refund. Granite
State further states that on August 22,
1901, it filed revised rates in its Rate
Schedule S-1 tracking the Penn- York
Rate Schedule SS-1 rates that the
Commission had accepted in its August
2, 1991 order. (Docket No. TM91-11—4~
000). Granite State's filing was accepted
in a Letter Order dated September 19,
1991 “subject to Granite State promptly
tracking any further rate changes” by
Penn-York.

Granite State states that, on October
3, 1991, the Commission issued a further
Order Grarting and Denying Rehearing
Requests in Docket Nos. RP91-68-000. et
al., directing Penn-York to revise the
rates for Rate Schedule S5-1 service,
effective with the date of the order. It
further states that Penn-York filed
revised rates on October 15, 1991, in
compliance with the Commission’s
October 3. 1991 order.

According to Granite State, its filing
tracks in its Rate Schedule S-1 the
change filed by Penn-York in
compliance with the Commission’s
October 3, 1991 order.

Granite Staie states that copies of its
filing were served on its storage service
customers, Bay State Gas Company and
Northern Utilities, Inc. and also on the
regulatory commissions of the states of
Maine, Massachusetts and New
Hampshire.

Any person desiring to be heard or to
protest said filing should file a motion to



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING
CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION
DIVISION FOR THE PURPOSE OF
CONSIDERING:

CASE NO. 10264
ORDER NO. R-9495

APPLICATION OF ROBERT L. BAYLESS FOR
DESIGNATION OF A TIGHT FORMATION,
RIO ARRIBA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

RDER OF THE DIVISION
BY THE DIVISION:

This cause came on for hearing at 8:15 a.m. on March 21, 1991, at Santa Fe, New
Mexico, before Examiner Michael E. Stogner.

NOW, onthis 6th day of May, 1991 the Division Director, having considered
the testimony, the record and the recommendations of the Examiner, and being fully
advised in the premises,

FINDS THAT:

(1)  Due public notice having been given as required by law, the Division has
jurisdiction of this cause and the subject matter thereof.

(2)  The applicant, Robert L. Bayless, requests that the Division in accordance
with Section 107 of the Natural Gas Policy Act and 18 C.F.R. §271.703 recommend to
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission that the Pictured Cliffs formation underlying
the following lands situated in Rio Arriba County, New Mexico, hereinafter referred to
as the Pictured Cliffs formation, be designated as a "tight formation" in said Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission’s regulations:

TOWNSHIP 29 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 29 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All
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containing 193,090 acres, more or less; of which approximately 30,720 acres are within
the Carson National Forest and the remaining is located within the Jicarilla Apache

TOWNSHIP 29 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 30 NORTIHL, RANGE 4 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 and 2:  All
Sections 11 through 14: All
Sections 23 through 26: All
Sections 35 and 36: All

TOWNSHIP 31 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, NMPM
Sections 2 through 306: All

TOWNSHIP 31 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 32 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, NMPM
Sections 7 through 10: All

Sections 15 through 22: All
Sections 27 through 35:  All

TOWNSHIP 32 NORTH, RAN WEST, NMPM
Sections 7 through 36: All

Indian Reservation.

(3)  The applicant has designated the above-described area the "Cabresto Tight
Gas Area” and included within the confines of said area are portions of the Choza Mesa-
Pictured Cliffs Pool, East Blanco-Pictured Cliffs Pool, and Gobernador-Pictured Cliffs

Pool.
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(4)  The type log presented by the applicant to represent the Pictured Clifts
formation in the area proposed for "tight formation" designation is the Welex Induction
Guard Log run in the applicant’s Jicarilla 474 Well No. 4 located 1850 feet from the
South line and 1775 feet from the East line (Unit J) of Section 31, Township 30 North,
Range 3 West, NMPM, East Blanco-Pictured Cliffs Pool, Rio Arriba County, New
Mexico.

(5)  The top and base of the Pictured Cliffs formation are found at depths of
3699 feet and 3974 feet, respectively, on said type log.

(6)  One hundred and twenty four wells have been drilled into or through the
Pictured Cliffs formation in the proposed designation area. Of these, fifty-three are
presently capable of producing from the Pictured Cliffs formation.

(7)  The average depth of the top of the Pictured Cliffs formation in the
proposed Cabresto Tight Gas Area was testified to be 3715 feet.

(8)  The geological evidence presented by the applicant indicates that the
Pictured Cliffs formation underlies essentially all of the area under consideration. The
formation consists of a marine clay filled very fine to fine grained, reasonably well
sorted, subround to subangular, slightly calcareous, "salt and pepper” sandstone; the dark
grains are predominately glauconite, mica and carbonaceous shale. This sandstone was
deposited as a lenticular beach and nearshore bars which represent the last marine strata
in the northeasterly regression of the Cretaceous Sea and therefore creating stratigraphic
entrapment for the accumulation of natural gas. The geologic evidence also indicates
that there are two main zones within the Pictured Cliffs formation in this area with each
zone representing a regressive sequence separated by a transgressive marine tongue of
shale. There are also interbeds of this shale in the lower portion of each main zone,
however, such interbeds became thinner and fewer in the upper portions.

(9)  Further, geological testimony indicates that the sandstone grains are coated
with an illite-smectite authigenic clay and is pervasive throughout the vertical extent of
the Pictured Cliffs formation. This clay coating serves to reduce the effective
per: . 2ability of the formation.

(10) The applicant included in his testimony as direct evidence a technical
paper entitled Effect of Overburden Pressure and Water Saturation on Gas Permeability of
Tight Sandstone Cores, authored by Rex D. Thomas and Don C. Ward, which was
presented at the Society of Petroleum Engineers (SPE) 46" Annual Fall Meeting, New
Orleans, October 3-6, 1971 as SPE 3634. Said paper was a published report of research
conducted by the U.S. Bureau of Mines which attempts to verify that the gus
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permeability of tight sandstone cores is markedly decreased with increasing overburden
pressure. Said research was conducted utilizing Pictured Cliffs formation cores taken
from wells within Project Gasbuggy located in Section 36, Township 29 North, Range 4
West, NMPM, Choza Mesa-Pictured Cliffs Pool, Rio Arriba County, New Mexico,
(Division Order No. R-3197). Project Gasbuggy was a part of the Plowshare Program
of the U.S. Atomic Energy Commission in which a 29-kiloton nuclear explosive was
detonated at a depth of 4,227 feet on December 10, 1967 for the purpose of conducting
the United States’ first underground nuclear experiment for the stimulation of low
productivity gas reservoirs.

(11) In said report, it was concluded from approximately 200 core samples
taken from the Choza-Mesa Pictured Cliffs Pool in Project Gasbuggy, yielding an
average initial gas permeability of 0.16 millidarcies (md), dry and an average water
saturation of 48 percent, an effective overburden pressure for this reservoir of 3000 psi
results in a total reduction of initial permeability of 95 percent to 0.008 md.

(12)  Said technical report has been utilized to support many of the previously
approved "tight gas areas” throughout New Mexico.

(13) Utilizing the technical procedure and calculations from said SPE paper,
an analysis on three additional cored wells from the Cabresto Tight Gas Area along with
a core utilized in the report indicates the average dry air permeability for the Pictured
Cliffs formation from the four wells to be 0.66 md, the net confining overburden
pressure at a depth of 3715 feet is approximately 2800 psi, the average core water
saturation was found to be 46 percent. The resulting in-situ permeability from the four
cored wells was determined to be 0.035 md.

(14) Obtaining stabilized unstimulated gas production flowrates for Pictured
Cliffs wells is not a standard procedure in this area, therefore all existing Pictured Cliffs
wells within said area have been stimulated with fracture treatments (usually hydraulic
and not nuclear in nature).

(15) In preparation for this Cabresto Tight Gas study, the applicant performed
a "par - .ily" unstimulated flow test on its Jicarilla 31-3-32 Well No. 1 (acid was used to
insure that the perforations in said wellbore were open) located in Unit L of Section 32,
Township 30 North, Range 3 West, NMPM, Rio Arriba County, New Mexico, which
resulted in a calculated 24-hour flowrate of 22.0 MCFD.

(16) The natural gas produced from the Pictured Cliffs formation in the
Cabresto Tight Gas Area is virtually "dry" with a few wells reporting very little
condensate production, which occurred only after stimulation,
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(17)  Within the proposed area there is a recognized aquifer being the Ojo
Alamo, located over 500 feet above the Pictured Cliffs formation.

(18)  Existing State of New Mexico and Federal Regulations, administered by
the U.S. Forest Service,. U.S. Bureau of Land Management, and the U.S. Department
of Energy, relating to drilling, casing and cementing of wells are in effect to help assure
that development of the Pictured Cliffs formation will not adversely affect said aquifer.

(19) The data available indicates that the Pictured Cliffs formation within the
proposed designated area, as described in Finding Paragraph No. (6) above, mccts all
the criteria set forth in 18 C.F.R. §271.703(C)(2)(a), (b), (¢), and (d), viz:

(a) theestimated average in-situ permeability throughout
the pay section is cxpected to be less than 0.1
millidarcies;

(b)  the stabilized production rate, against atmospheric pressure, for
wells completed for production in the Pictured Cliffs formation,
without stimulation, is not expected to exceed 105 MCF per day
(the average depth of the top of the formation is 3715 feet);

(c)  nowelldrilled into the formation is expected to produce more than
five barrels of crude oil per day; and

(d)  the Division has not authorized the formation or any portion
thereof to be developed by infill drilling.

(20) The Pictured Cliffs formation underlying the lands described in Finding
Paragraph No. (2) above should be recommended to the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission for designation as a tight formation.

ITI R RE ORDERED THAT:

(1) It be and hereby is recommended to the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission pursuant to Section 107 of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978, and 18
C.F.R. §271.703, that the Pictured Cliffs formation, as further described in Finding
Paragraph Nos. (4) and (5) of this Order, underlying the following described lands in Rio
Arriba County, New Mexico, be designated as a tight formation:

TOWNSHIP 29 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All
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TOWNSHIP 29 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 29 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 and 2:  All
Sections 11 through 14:  All
Sections 23 through 26: All
Sections 35 and 36: All

TOWNSHIP 31 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, NMPM
Sections 2 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 31 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, NMPM
Sections 1 through 36: All

TOWNSHIP 32 NORTH, RANGE 2 WEST, NMPM
Sections 7 through 10: All
Sections 15 through 22: All
Sections 27 through 35:  All

TOWNSHIP 32 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, NMPM
Sections 7 through 36: All

containing 193,090 acres, more or less, to be designated the Cabresto Tight Gas Area.

(2)  Jurisdiction of this cause is retained for the entry of such further orders
as the Division may deem necessary.
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DONE at Santa Fe, New Mexico, on the day and year hereinabove designated.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION

Lo

WILLIAM J. L
Director

SEAL



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
. ENEARGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION

BRUCE KING

POST QFFICE BOX 2088
SOVERNOR

STATE LAND OFFICE BUILDING
SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO 87504
(5051 827-5800

July 11, 1991

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
823 N. Capitol Street NE
Washington, D.C. 20426

ATTN: Marilyn Rand, Director
Division of Producer Resolution

Dear Ms. Rand:

I am writing to you to confirm our telephone conversation on Thursday July 11, 1991, it is
my understanding that a recommendation from the N.M. Oil Conservation Division on a
proposed "Tight Formation" application recently considered by this agency will not be
required since all the acreage involved is on Federally controlled lands (193,090 acres total,
30,720 acres Carson National Forest and 162,370 acres Jicarilla Apache Indian Reservation).

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.
Sincerely,

MICHAEL E. STOGNER
Chief Hearing Officer/Engineer

MES/jc

cc:  OCD - Aztec
Kevin McCord - Farmington
Robert L. Bayless - Farmington
Tommy Roberts - Farmington
Case File: 10264
U.S. Forest Service - Blanco, NM
U.S. BLM - Albuquerque
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am 8 47 ALBUQUERQUE DISTRICT OFFICE -

4353 MONTANO N E

ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MENICO 7107
October 18, 1991

Marilyn Rand, Director

Division of Producer Regulation

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

825 North Capitol Street NE

Washington, DC 20426

Dear Ms. Rand:

This jurisdictional agency hereby designates the Pictured Cliffs

formation underlying the following described lands in Rio Arriba
County, New Mexico as a tight formation, BLM Docket No. NM-74-91,

under Section 107 of

a. Township 29

the NGPA:

North, Range 3

West, NMPM

Sections
Sections
Sections

Township 29

4 through 9:
16 through 21:
28 through 33:

North, Range 4

All

All
All

West, NMPM

Sections

c. Township 30

1 through 36:

North, Range 3

All

West, NMPM

Sections

d. Township 30

1 through 36:

North, Range 4

All

West, NMPM

Sections
Sections
Sections
Sections

e. Township 31

1 and 2: All
11 through 14:
23 through 26:
35 and 36:

All

all
All

North, Range 3 West, NMPM

Sections
Sections
Sections

4 through 9:
16 through 21:
28 through 33:

All

All
All

The total area encompasses 76,800 acres, more or less, of which
approximately 30,720 acres are within the Carson National Forest
and the remaining is located within the Jicarilla Apache Indian
Reservation, situated in Rio Arriba County, New Mexico.

b. The applicant, Robert L. Bayvless, has designated the area
described abcve as the "Cabresto Tight Gas Area” and included
within the ccnfines of said area are portions of the Choza Mesa
Pictured Cliffs Pool, East Blanco Pictured Cliffs Pool, and
Gobernador Pictured Cliffs Pool.



- C. A recognized aquifer, Ojo Alamo, is located within the
deslgnated area over 500 feet above the Pictured Cliffs formation.
Existing Federal and State of New Mexico Regulations, administered
by the U.S. Forest Service, U.S. Bureau of Land Management, and the
U.S. Department of Energy, relating to drilling, casing, and
cementing of wells are in effect to help assure that development of
the Pictured Cliffs formation will not adversely affect said
aquifer.

d. The estimated average in-situ gas permeability, throughout
the pay secticn, 1s expected to be 0.1 millidarcy or less.

e. The stabilized production rate, against atmospheric
pressure, of wells completed for production in the Pictured Cliffs
formation, without stimulation, 1is not expected to exceed the
production rate of 105 MCF per day at the average 3715 foot depth
of the top of the formation.

f. No well drilled into the designated tight formation 1is
expected to produce, without stimulation, more than five barrels of

crude o0il per dav.

g. The formation or any portion thereof has not been
authorized to be developed by infill drilling.

Evidence was presented at a public hearing held by the New Mexico
0il Conservation Division, Case No. 10264, on March 21, 1991, at
Santa Fe, New Mexico. Exhibits and other documentation are
enclosed. The 1lands involved are 100% Federal/Indian, so no
designation will be submitted by the State of New Mexico.

This Jjurisdictional agency reduced the area requested by the
applicant to approximately forty (40) percent of its original size
due to lack of supporting data for the eliminated acreage. The
applicant, Robert L. Bavless, at an informal conference held in
this office on Julv 22, 1991, presented additional technical

interpretation of their data.

It is requested that this Jjurisdictional agency be advised 1in
writing when the 45 day review period will end and the appropriate
FERC Order No. and/or State No. (NM-__ ) assigned to this tight
formation be included. -

Persons objecting to this determination may file a protest directly
with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, in accordance with
18 CFR Part 275.203 and 275.204, within 20 days after the notice is
published in the Federal Register by the FERC.



If vou have any questions please contact Allen F. Buckingham at FTS
479-8765 or (505) 761-8765.

Sincerely yours,

for Assistant Dist¥ict Manager
Mineral Resources

Enclosures

ce:
Robert L. Bavless (Kevin McCord)

NM 0il Conservation Division (Michael Stogner)
William F. Carr (Amocco Prod. Co.)}

Tommy Roberts (Mallon 0il Co. & Schalk Dev. Co.)
H. L. Kendrick (El1 Paso Natural Gas Company)
NM-922 (Joe Chesser)
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NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION
STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CASE NO. 10420

IN THE MATTER OF:

The Application of Union 0il
Company of California, d/b/a
UNOCAL, for designation of a
tight formation, Rio Arriba
County, New Mexico.

BEFORE:
MICHAEL E. STOGNER

Hearing Examiner

Bureau of Land Management Building
435 Montano Road, Northeast
Albuguerque, New Mexico
December 20, 1991

REPORTED BY:

DEBBIE VESTAL el EXHIBIT NO. I

Certified Shorthand Reporter
CASE NO. —£Z£%7<

BEFOREEXANHNE?CATANACH
SERVATION DIVISION
Oit CON AA?&Z

COPY

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTING
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dismissed.

I believe Mr. Buckingham has a
statement at this point in time.

MR. BUCKINGHAM: Yes. Since this area
involves infill drilling, I'd like to just put in
for a matter of record what FERC's feeiing on
infill drilling is at this stage of the game.

The FERC issued a notice of proposed
rule making on March 20, 1991. The subject was
gualifying certain tight formation gas for tax
credit.

Within that proposed rule making, a
portion of which I quote, "was previously
authorized to be developed by infill drilling if
in the jurisdictional agency's judgment the
formation cannot be developed without the tax
credit for incentive price or the incentive price
for wells spud before May 13, 1990."

I talked to FERC on December 6, 1991,
after our informal meeting here with the
representatives from the OCD and UNOCAL regarding
economic data because this is an infill drilling
area.

The reply I got from FERC was that if

we were -- 1f you go in and use economic data

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTTNG
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alone for any way to support your case, it will
result in an automatic tolling letter from the
FERC because even though we realize it, you
realize it, the industry realizes it, everybody
realizes it, that the tax credit is what is
driving this rush to get wells drilled; but the
regulation still says price incentive.

There 1s no price incentive, but until
that regulation is changed, the FERC is bound by
that regulation. They must follow that
regulation to the letter.

So as a result, when we go in with the
recommendation and designation of thils area, I
will state -- the BLM will state in there that
the only reason this economic data is there is
Just for general information. The application,
if we decide to designate it, will stand on its
own merits based on permeability, crude oil
production, and production according to the table
listed in the FERC guidelines.

I asked -- I keep asking FERC. I've
been following this since March 20, 1991. They
are not in a hurry to issue a rule. I'm afraid

they're waiting for a test case. Since I know

they will read this transcript, this might be a

RONDRIGUEZ-VESTAL REPORTTING
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test case. But I just want to make that very
clear that we cannot use economic data to prove
our case.

As far as infill drilling, I also asked
FERC about -- we are talking about an area here.
Since the boundaries are a federal unif and there
1s no substantial infill drilling, all we're
looking at is a federal unit. So that should
stand by itself. That's all I have to say.

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr.
Buckinghanm.

Does anybody else have anything further
in this case?

Mr. Carr, I'm going to ask you to
provide me a rough draft -- I'm sorry -- provide
me and Mr. Buckingham with a rough draft order.

MR. CARR: Okay.

EXAMINER STOGNER: If there's nothing
further in Case 10420, I'll take it under
advisement,

(The proceedings were concluded.)

RODRIGUEZ-VESTAT. RFPNARTTNA
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1. Introduction

As part of the Revenue Reconciliation
Act of 1360,1 si y-_d intolaw ty tha
President on November 3, 1590, the ta
credit for nonceaventional fuels wader
Section 29 of the hfgrr‘a icnal Revenue
Code was extended for two years to
centinue 1o provide an incentive to
develop nonconventional fuels. Tha tax
credit was also reinstated for ona
nonconventional fuel for which it had
previously lapsed—gas from newly
drilled wells in tight formations—by
revising the tax code so that tight
fcrmation gas is eligible for the tax
credit even if the price for tight
formation gas i3 no lunzger ragulated

The Federal Erergy Roﬂuldtor'.
Commissian {Commi ssxon) is pic
three mincr amsndments to the
Commission’s regulations to carry out
Congress’ intent inrest :
credit for 7:3 produced fromne
“formation wells. T
Commission is crorosing
maximum ailoweble prodq-

natural gas pro;ced rem tizht
formdt ion wiose average depth
15.000 feet.? In wddition. the C

rirg the

wly
e

icn rates for

excoeds
Commission

S

Wi Law Nu, 101253,

PSectivn 11301 P
1288479,

EXHIBIT NO.

CASE NO. 10432

Application of the NMOCD

is proposing to permit jurisdictional

agencies to designate as a tight

formation a formation that (1) does not :

meet the Commission’s permeability

standard for tight formations {but meets

the production rate standards), if the

jurisdiction agency can show that the

tax credit (or the incentive price for the

wells spudded before May 13, 1990) is :

necessary to provide reascnable ¢

incentives to produce natural gas from

that formation, or {2) was previously

authorized to be developed by infill

drilling if the jurisdiction agency's

1udume“ is that the formation subject to

infili drilling cannot be developed

wiithout the tax credit {or incentive price

for weils spudded before May 13, 1520}.

These proposed amendments would

enable natural gas produced from tizht i

fermations cf average depths below

13.6C0 feet, natural gas produced from

formations which do not meet the

Commission's permeability standard for i

tight formations, and natural gas

producad from formations subject to i

previously infill drilling orders to qualify )

for the tax credit. The proposed
amendments do not affect the price at

which tight formation gas may lawfully
be sold.

1. Backgreund

Under Section 29 of the Internal .
Revenue Code, qualified
nonccnventional fuels are eligible for a
production credit that is equal to $3 per 1
barrel or the Btu barrel-of-oil equivalent
(adjusted for inflation). Qualified fuels
include (1) il produced from shale and
tar sands, (2) gas produced from
gecpressured brine, Devenian shale,
coal seams, tight formations, or biomuss,
and {3) liquid, gaseous, or solid synthetic
fuels produced from coal (including
lignite), including such fuels when used
as feedstocks. Prior to amendment by
the Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1990,
the production credit was available for
qualified fuels produced from a well
drilled, or a facility placed in service,
before January 1, 1991, and scld before
january 1, 2001. Under the 1690 Azt, the
credit was extended for two years to

fuels preduced from a well drilled. or a
facz'“ ty placed in service, before January
1. 1593, und sold before January 1. 2€03.

[n addition, before amendment by the

950 Act, the tax credit for gas produced
from tight formations was anly availabla
if the price of the gas was regulated by
the United States mth a maximum
lawful price of at least 130 percent cf the

pplicabie ceiling price under section
103 of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978

ILLEGIBLE
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cemments on the appropriate treatment
of ous from such wells. A jurisdictional
SIUncy may du"""‘.ine that a field
qualfics w3 a ¢t formation based on a
wewirg that e tax credit is necessary
surrant further development, without
~orsiduring s ether the incentive price
5 aecessary to provide reasonable

€3 Jor ~roduction. in such
tances, should any producer in
teld b entitled to collect the tight
formation incertive price for gas for
wells in that formation spudued before
Ma. 13, 1950, based salely en the finding
tht thae tax credit is necessary to
wacrant further development?

AN tively, should separate

Cree
i

e

';ro«,'d":fzs be established ta consider
we". v tha tight formation incentive
i3 OD,JLNed ‘o the tax credit) is

ur, to provide reasonable

ves o produce natural gas from

$ ;"1:03{ " _",(:}(D) of tHe Com..JSSIOn s
mgu!a!ions. This section currently
cequires a jurisdictional agency to
exclude a formaticn, or portion thereof,
that is subject to a prior infill drilling
crder from determination as a tight
formation if the )ur.sdictional agency’s
rn‘qment is that the formation subject to
intiil drilling can be developed without
:ne incentive price. The Commission
pruposes to .mend this section to refer
to the tax cr-. dit for the same reasons
civen for amending § 271.703(c)(2)(ii).

(1. Veitten Commeant Procedure

The Commission invites all interested

-rsons to submit written data, views,
and c ,her iaformation concerning the
cropesals in this Notice of Proposed
R :making. All comments ia response
0 1515 Notice should be submitted to the
Se ‘ﬂtdry Federal Energy Regulatory
Curmission, 825 North Capitol Street,
NE. Washingten, DC 20426, and should
refer to Dochet Mo, RM91-8-000. An
and fourteen copies should be
Flid o ith e Cominission within 30
yvs after pubiication of this Notice in
2 Federal Reuister.

ariginal

nallenty” us a small

2Tt enterpriso, or a small
5 USC.sut{h) (1953). A

”e.l b, 1o section 3
2 or se “which is

szemendy wwre lamd operited and which is

nlerence

Written comments wiil be placed in
the Commission’s public files and will
be available for inspection in the
Commission’s Public Reference Reom.
941 North Capitol Street NE.,
Washington, DC, during regular
business hours.

1V. Administrative Findings
A. Regulatory Flexibility \ct Stazement

The Regulatory Flexibility Act
(RFA} t! requires the Commission to
describe the impact thut a propesed rule
would have on small entities or to
certify that the rule wiil not have a
significant economic impact on a
substantial number of small entities.'?
The Commission is not required to make
an analysis if a proposed rule will not
have such an impact.t?

In general, the economic impact of a
proposed rule is not “significant” within
the meaning of the RFA if the impact on
small entities is expected to be
beneficial.* The proposed rule will
enable certain natural gas producers
that may qualify as small entities to
qualify for tax credits. The Commission
believes this impact is beneficial and,
therefore, certifies that this proposed
rule will not have a significant economic
impact on a substantial number of small
entities.!s

B. Environmenrtal Review

The Commission is nct preparing an
environmental assessment or
environmental impact statement in this
proceeding because the proposed
amendments do not substantially
change the effect of the regulations
being amended. The proposed
amendments provide procedures for
carrying out the intent of Congress in
reinstating the tax credit for gas
produced from new wells in tight
formations, but would have no
significant effect on the human
envirgnment.!8

C. Information Collection Statement

The Office of Management and
Budget’s (OMB) regulations require

not dominant i its Feld of ooeratiun.
6.3204] {1208),
Y5 US.C 605ib) {1483).
VAL Tex Edoctere Covrproiiv
773 F.2d 327, 34043 (DC Cir. 1003).
145 U.S.C. 603(n) (1233).

15US.C.

OMB to approve certain information
collection requirements imposed by
agency rule.'? In Order No. 523, supra.
the Commission stated that it would
continue to process applications far wel
category determinations through
December 31, 1592, so that producers
could qualifv for tax credits. This
proposal wiil not increase the regulatory
burden under existing regulations un
producers seehing to gualify tight
formations of natural gas to be eligible
for tax credits. The Commission,
however, is rotifying OMB of its actions
in this notice of proposed rulemak:ng.

List of Subjects in 18 CFR Part 271

Continental shelf, Natural gus. Price
controls, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

In consideration of the foregoing, the
Commission proposes to amend part
271, chapter {, title 18, Cede of Federa!
Regulations, as set forth below.

By direction of the Commission.
Lois D. Cashell,
Secretary.

PART 271—-CEILING PRICES

1. The authroity citation for part 271 is
revised to read as follows:

Authority: 15 US.C. 717-717w; 42 US.C.
7101-7352; E.O. 12008, 3 CFR. 1978 Comp.. p
142: 15 U.S.C. 3301-3432.

2.In § 271.703, paragraphs {c)(2)(i)(B .
(c)(2)()(D), and {c}(2}(ii) are revised to
read as follows:

§271.703 Tight formations.

« « 3 - «

{c)

[2) « « &

{i} =

{B) The stabilized production rate,
against atmospheric pressure, of wells
completed for production in the
formation, without stimulation, is not
expected to exceed the production rate
determined in accordance with the
following table:

16 Section 380. H{a i 2)ii] ui the Commission's
reguluiions categorically exemps from
emironmemal review Co on propusals for
premulgation of rules that are claniving. corrective
ot geocedaral, o that da ot substantinlly change
the effe.ct of reauliations being umended. S - ofsn,
§ 340.2{a} for the defimtion of “nates
exclusion,”

"3 CFR 1520.13 {1990).

If the average cepth to tre tcp of the fermaten (in feet)

Tre maximum alowak's

Exceeds—

preauction rata (in
theusand cotie feet per

dces not excead—
But dcus not excead day) may rot escead—

1,020 4

t,300 £t



Federal Register / Vol. 56, No. 61 / Friday, March 29, 1991 / Proposed Rules

13095

{(NGPA).2 Section 107{c){5) of the NGPA
authorized the Commission to prescribe
maximum lawful prices that exceeded
the otherwise applicable ceiling prices
for the first sale of “*high-cost” natural
gas produced under such other
conditions &s the Commission
determines to present extraordinary
risks or costs. In Order No. 99, issued
August 15, 1980, the Commission, acting
under NGPA section 107(c}{5),
authorized a ceiling price of 200 percent
of the maximum lawful price under
NGPA section 103 for gas produced from
qualified tigh! formations.* The
incentive price was not provided for gas
from tight formations below 15,000 feet,
because ceiling prices for gas from
below such depths had been previously
removed under NGPA secticn 121(b).8
All tight formation gas that qualified
for the NGPA section 107(c)(5) incentive
ceiling price establishec by Order No. 99
qualified for the tax credit. However, by
1990 a substantial portion of the tight
formation gas had been deregulated and,
accordingly, no longer qualified for the
tax credit. Under the Natural Gas
Wellhead Decontrol Act of 1989,6
natural gas that was not subject to a
first saie contract on the date of
enactment was immediately
deregulated. Gas sold under contract
that expire or are termirated. or which
the parties renegotiate to provide that
maximum lawful prices no longer apply,
is also deregulated. Gas from newly
spudded wells will be deregulated on
May 15, 1961, and all remaining
wellhead price controls will be removed
on January 1, 1993. In Order No. 523, the
Commission amended its regulations to
reflect the provisions of the Decontrol
Act, and noted that producers may
voluntarily file applications for well
category determinations for any NGPA
category, including high-cost gas, until

315 U.S.C. 3301-3342 11935). However, the credit
is not available unless the gas was sold at a lawful
price determined wnhout regarc to the provisions of
NCFA Section 107. {Internal Revenue Code Section
29,¢}). Thus, a producer can utilize the tight
formation incertive price by collec*ing a price in
excess of the otherwise appiicable maximur. or the
tax credit, but not both.

4 Reguiations Covering High-Zost Natura) Gas
Prodvced From Tight Formatior <. 45 FR 56034 {Auvg.
22,1980} FERC Stats. & Regs [Regulations
Preambles 1877-1981; § 302.183.

5 Section 121(b) of the NGPA provided that on the
eflective date of the Commission’s incremental
pricing regulations under section 201 of the NGPA.
the criling prices for section 107 high-cost gas would
no longer spply. except to cslegories of gas under
section 107(c)(5). Incrementai price regulations
became effective November 1. 1979. See Interim
Rules Defining and Deregulating Certain High-Cost
Nuturul Ges. 44 FR 61950 {Oct. 28. 1979). FERC
Stats. & Regs. [Regulations Preambles 1977-1981]
{30099 21 p. 30.691.

¢ Pubilic Law No. 101-60. Julv 26. 1989, 103 Stat.
157 (19HY).

January 1, 1993, when section 503 of the
NGPA is repealed. The Commission
stated that it would continue to process
such applications for well category
determinations until that date in order to
allow producers to obiain tax credits
that are dependent upon such
determinations, even if the gas has been
otherwise decontrolled.

In addition, in Order No. 519, issued
Fcbruary 12, 1990, the Commission
terminated the incentive ceiling price for
sales of tight formation natural gas
produced from wells spudded or
recompleted after May 12, 1990.7 The
Commission concluded that since most
natural gas had already been
decontrolled, or was being sold at levels
beneath the applicable ceiling price, the
incentive ceiling prices for tight
formation gas were no longer necessary
to stimulate new production of such gas,
and that commitment of new money by
producers in reliance on the incentive
ceiling price was no longer in the public
interest.8 Thus, the tax credit for gas
from tight formations, which was
dependent on the existence of a
regulated price, lapsed for tight
formation gas from wells spudded or
recompleted after May 12, 1990, or for
which the price has been deregulated
under the Decontrol Act.

The 1990 Act allows such deregulated
gas nevertheless to qualify for the tax
credit by making it available for gas
from tight formations that was
committed or dedicated to interstate
commerce {as defined in the NGPA) as
of April 20, 1977, or produced after
December 31, 1990, from & well drilled
after the date of enactment.® The
requirement that the price of the gas be
regulated was deleted.

1I1. Discussion

Section 271.703 of the regulations
provides that a formation must meet
three guidelines to qualify as a tight
formation: a permeability standard, a
maximum production rate, and an oil
production limit. One of these
guidelines—the maximum stabilized
production rate in § 271.703(c)(2}(i}{B}—
is tied to the average depth of &
formation. Bocause gas below 15,000 feet
was deregulated on November 1, 1979,
the Commission only established
maximum stabilized production rates for

* Limitation of Incentive Price for High-Cost Gas
to Commodity Values. 55 FR 6367 [Feb. 23, 1930).
FERC Stats. & Regs., Regulations Preambles §-
30.879.

® Jd. at p. 31.668.

® The Revenue Recanciliation Act of 1990 was
signed by the President on November 5, 1990.
However, the Conference Report states that gas
qualifies for the tax credit if produced from e weil
drilied after December 31, 1890

formations whose average depth did not
exceed that depth. Any gas from below
that depth, having no ceiling price, could
not therefore gualify for an incentive
price. However, since newly drilled
wells that produce gas from tight
formations below 15,000 fcet are now
eligible for the tax credit, the
Commission proposes to amend

§ 271.703(c)(2)(i)(B) to establish
maximum allowable production rates for
formetion below that depth.?® The
highest maximum stabilized production
rate proposed is for completions at
18,500 feet and deeper. The Commission
does not believe there is any need to
establish higher rates for production
from lower depths, because very little
gas is found below 20,000 feet, and the
maximum allowable production rate for
completions at 19,500 feet is an
adequate measure of tight formation
production rates from lower depths.

The second proposed change involves
§ 271.703)c)(2)(ii) of the Cornmission’s
regulations. That section currently
provides that a jurisdictional agency
may designate as a tight formation a
formation that meets the maximum
allowable production rates for gas and
oil, but does not meet the permeability
standard of 0.1 millidarcy or less, if the
jurisdictional agency shows that the
formation exhibits low permeability
characteristics, and the tight formation
incentive price is necessary to provide
reasonable incentives to produce
natural gas from that formation. Since
there is no longer a tight formation
incentive price for gas from wells drilled
or recompleted after May 12, 1990, or
tight formation gas that has been
deregulated under the Decontrol Act, the
Commission proposes to amend this
regulation to provide that jurisdictional
agencies may designate a formation
with permeability in excess of the 0.1
millidarcy standard as a tight formation,
if it otherwise qualifies as a tight
formation, and the tax credit {or the
incentive ceiling price for wells spudded
before May 13, 1990) is needed 1o
develop the formation.

Some formations with permeability in
excess of 0.1 millidarcy, which may be
designated tight formations on the
ground that the tax credit is needed to
develop the formation, may include
wells that were spudded before May 13,
1990. The Commission is requesting

39 The formula used ta establish maximum
stabilized production rates below 15.000 feet is the
same as that used in Order No. 99 to establish such
rates {or production fro above 15.000 feet.
Regulations Covering High-Cost Natural Gas
Produced from Tight Formations. 45 FR 56034 {Aug.
22,1932}, FERC Stats. & Regs. [Regulations
Preambles 1977-1981}



{D) If the formation or any portion
thereof was authorized to be developed
by infill drilling prior to the date of
determination and the jurisdictional
sgency has information which in its
judgment indicates that such formation
or portion subject to infil} drilling can be
developed absent the tax credit under
section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code
{or incentive price established in
paragraph (a) of this section for wells
spudded before May 13, 1990}, then the
jurisdicticnal agency shall not include
such formation or portion thereof in its
determination.

(ii) The jurisdictional agency may
designate as a tight formation any
formation that meets the guidelines
contained in paragraphs (c)(2)(i)}(B) and
(c){2)(:){C) of Lhis section, but does not
meet the guideline contained in
paragraph (c}(2)(i}{(A) of this section, if
the jurisdictional agency makes an
adequate showing that the formation
exhibits low permeability
characteristics, and that eligibility for a
tax credit under section 29 of the
Internal Revenue Code (or the incentive
ceiling price for wells spudded before
May 13. 1993} is necessary to provide
reasonable incentives for production of

the natural gas from the determined
formation due to the extraordinary costs
associated with such production.

* L] » L ] -
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POSTAL SERVICE
39 CFR Part 111

Nonmazilabitity of Deceptive
Solicitations

AGENCY: Postal Service.

ACTION: Proposed rule.

suriaARY: The Postal Service proposes
to amend its regulations to implement
the Deceptive Mailings Prevention Act
of 1899, Public Law No. 101-524
(Nevember 6, 1990). Effective May §,
1991, the Act makes solicitations by
nongovernmental entities, which imply a
Federal Government connection,
approval, or endorsement they do not
actually have, nonmailable unless they
are contained in certain publications or
display prescribed disclaimers.

paTES: Comments must be received on
or before April 29, 1991.

Federal Register / Vol. 56, No. 61 / Friday, March 29, 1931 / Proposed Rules 13057
if the average depth 1o the top of the formation (in feet) The maximum alfowable
ot cunic oot
3 cubc
Exceeds— But does not exceed— | ' STES B0 prlngd
1,500 2,000 59
2,000 2,500 68
2.500 3,000 79
3,000 3,500 ]
3,500 4,000 105
4,000 4500 ) 122
4,500 5,000 141
5,000 5,500 163
6,500 6.000 188
6,000 6,500 217
6,500 7.000 b3
7,000 7.500 290
7,500 8,000 33¢
8,000 8,500 368
8.500 8,000 449
. 9,000 9,500 512
8,500 a 10.000 600
10,000 10,500 693
10,500 11,000 802
11,000 11,500 827
11,500 12,000 1,071
12,000 12,500 1,228
12,500 13,000 1,432
13.000 13,500 1,855
13,500 14,000 1913
14,000 14,500 2212
14,500 15,000 2557
15,000 15,500 2,956
15,500 16,000 9,417
16,000 16,500 3,950
16,500 17,000 4567
17,000 17,500 5279
17.500 - 18,000 6,103
18,000 18,500 7055
18,500 15,000 8,156
18,000 19,500 9,429
19,500 + 10,800
» L E ] * L ]

ADDRESSES: Writlen comments on the
proposal should be sent to the Assistant
General Counsel, Consumer Protection
Division, Lew Department, U.S. Postal
Service, 475 L'Enfant Plaza West SW,,
Washington, DC 20263-1144. Copies of
all written comments received will be
available for inspection and
photocopying between 9 a.m. end 4 p.n.
each business day, in room 6347, Postal
Service Headquarters, 475 L'Enfant
Plaza West, SW., Washington, DC.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION COKTACT:
Mr. John F. Ventresco, {202) 268-3085.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The
Deceptive Mailings Prevention Act of
1963 {Pub. L. No. 101-524, November 6,
1999) adds new subsections (f) and {g} to
section 3001 of title 39, United States
Code, and makes them appliceble to
matter deposited for mailing and
delivery on or after 180 days after
enactment—i.e., on or after May 5, 1801,
The new subsections deal with any
solicitation by a nongovernmental entity
containing terms or symbaols that
reasonably could be interpreted or
construed as implying a Federal
Government cennection, approval, or
endorsement. If the soliciting entity does
not have such connection, approval. or
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Section 107
Tight Formation Gas

DEFINITION: Natural gas produced from a tight formation is produced with
difficulty because the rock of the formation has low permeability and flow rates.
Production from a tight formation is often termed “unconventional” production
because normal completion operations are not usually sufficient to economically
produce gas from the formation. Massive fracturing can be required to stimulate
production. The designation of a formation creates the economic incentive for
drilling which may not otherwise take place.

FE"TZOTIEDODP

This Section Includes:
Designation of a Tight Formation..........ccccceiviiiiiiiiiiiiiieennen.. D-13
State and Federal Action on Recommendations ......................... D-14
Content of Tight Formation Recommendations ......................... D-15
Tight Formations Approved by FERC ...........c.ocveeuiunivnrnirnennnnn. D-17
Tight Formations Awaiting Approval by FERC........................... D-24
Qualification of Individual WellS...........ccvvviiiiiriiriiiiiiiieennnnnes D-24
New Tight Formation Gas Deflned .............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininnn. D-24
Recompletion Tight Formation Gas Deflned ............................. D-24
Section 107 Tight Formation Filing Requirements ..................... D-26
Section 107 Tight Formation Sample Oath ..................ccoeveeeeen. D-26
Questions and ANSWETrS .........ccccviiuiirieeirirriesiiiuasenacsocscnane D-27
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3. Nonassociated Natural Gas: Wells completed in the formation are not
expected to produce, without stimulation, more than five barrels of crude oil
per day. The NGPA defines “crude oil” as a mixture of hydrocarbons that exists
in the liquid phase in natural underground reservoirs and remains liquid at
atmospheric pressure after passing through surface separating facilities.

4. Infill Drilling Guideline: A formation or any portion shall not be included in
the recommendation if the formation or any portion has undergone infill
drilling prior to the date of recommendation and the state agency has
information which indicates that such portion can be developed absent the
incentive price. Infill drilling exists when the formation or portion thereof is
considered substantially developed subject to requirements respecting well
spacing or proration units, and the requirements were amended by the state
agency to provide for smaller proration units for more effective and efficient
drainage of the reservoirs in the formation.

Additionally, Section 271.703(c)(2)(ii) allows the consideration of a formation for
designation when the permeability exceeds 0.1 md but the formation exhibits low
permeability characteristics. The jurisdictional agency must make an adequate
showing of both of two facts. The agency must show that the formation exhibits low
permeability characteristics and that the price established for tight formation gas is
necessary to provide reasonable incentives for production of the natural gas from
the recommended formation due to the extraordinary costs associated with such
production.

State Action to Recommend a Formation: An applicant may request a tight
formation determination by submitting a written request to the NGPA section of the
Oil and Gas Division that a named formation or a specific portion thereof is a tight
formation. The applicant must submit the names and addresses of all first
purchasers, as indicated on current commission records, from all wells (regardless
of operator) within the specific portion of the named formation and all operators in
the same field or fields involved. RRC staff will mail a notice of application to all
parties. If the technical staff is satisfied with the data submitted with the
application, (see Content of the Recommendation Compiled)and if no protest is filed
within 21 days of the notice, the application will be presented to the Railroad
Commission for approval of the recommendation. If the technical staff is not
satisfied with the data submitted, or if a protest is filed within the 21-day notice
period, the applicant may request a hearing to consider the application. Any such
hearing shall be held only after at least ten days notice to all affected persons. If no
protestant appears at the hearing, the application will be presented to the Railroad
Commission for approval of the recommendation if the application and any evidence
presented at the hearing establishes that the subject formation meets the
prescribed requirements for a tight formation determination. A Railroad
Commission tight formation determination is not final for NGPA purposes until
after FERC finalization. Individual well filings for a determination that natural gas
from the wells is being produced from a designated tight formation will not be
forwarded to the FERC until after the subject tight formation determination is final
for NGPA purposes.
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Federal Action to Designate a Formation: FERC action on tight gas

determinations begins upon receipt of the determination from the jurisdictional
agency. Adetermination submitted to the FERC shall become final 45 days after the
date on which the commission received notice of the determination from the
jurisdictional agency. (See §275.202 of the Federal Regulations.)

Content of the Recommendation Compiled: The content of the recommendation

forwarded to FERC from Texas is composed of very specific requirements listed in
the regulations concerning tight gas formation designation. The extent of the data

depends upon the size and geology of the formation, but each recommendation must
contain the following basic information.

1.

Geography and Geology: The applicant must provide a geographical and
geological description. Geographic data should include a map showing the
geographic limits of the formation, naming counties involved, describing
boundaries, including abstract numbers and survey names, listing fields
and/or outlining the area of concern. It is often helpful for the applicant to
provide a map showing all data points. Be as precise as possible.

The geological data should include a structure map showing the top contour
of the formation, a regional cross-section to determine upper and lower limits
of the formation, and some depositional history. It can also be helpful to
provide information to the Railroad Commission about the lithology or rock
composition of the formation.

Supporting Data: Applicant must provide the appropriate engineering and
geological data to support the technical guidelines. In-situ permeability data
can be obtained from pressure buildup (PBU) analysis, from core analysis
(routine permeability which is converted to in situ permeability by calculating
or by applying reservoir conditions to the core) or from flow test.
Prestimulation flow rate data can be obtained from either a 4-pt. calculated
absolute open flow (CAOF), or a 1-pt. CAOF.

Data should be provided on any liquids which are produced. If liquid (oil,
condensate, water) is produced during the prestimulation testing, data should
be submitted showing the properties of the fluid. Such data would include the
gravity at standard conditions, the volume being produced, the gas/oil ratio,
the bottom-hole temperature, and the bottom-hole pressure.

Producing Wells: Applicant should provide a map or list of the wells that are
currently producing in the subject formation.

Fresh Water Protection: The applicant must address the issue of whether
any fresh water aquifers that are or are expected to be used as a domestic or
agricultural water supply will be adversely affected by designating the tight
formation. Therefore the depth of the deepest fresh water aquifer in this
formation should be given. Applicant can submit copies of letters from the
Texas Department of Water Resources signifying the depth to which fresh
water must be protected in the subject area.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION
P.O. BOX 2088
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87504

SPECIAL RULES AND PROCEDURES FOR
TIGHT FORMATION DESIGNATIONS UNDER
SECTION 107 OF THE NATURAL GAS POLICY ACT OF 1978

Amended 1/92

General

Applications for tight formation designations under Section 107 of the NGPA and
applicable FERC rules and regulations shall be accepted by the Division at its Santa
Fe, New Mexico office after June 30, 1980. These special rules apply only to
individual tight formation designations and to not apply to individual well filing
requirements for price category determination.

Definitions

L.

"Crude oil" means a mixture of hydrocarbons that exists in liquid phase in
natural underground reservoirs and remains liquid at atmospheric pressure after
passing through surface separation facilities.

"Division" means the Oil Conservation Division of the Energy, Minerals and
Natural Resources Department of the State of New Mexico.

"FERC" means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

"USBLM" means the office of the United States Bureau of Land Management
in Albuquerque, New Mexico.

"Formation" means any geological formation or portion thereof described by
geological as well as geographical parameters which is the subject of a tight
formation designation application.

"Infill drilling" means any drilling in a substantially developed formation (or a
portion thereof) subject to the requirements respecting well spacing or proration
units which were amended by the Division or the Oil Conservation Commission

NMOCD Exhibit No. 8
January 9, 1992
CASE NO. 10432



after the formation (or portion thereof) was substantially developed and which
were adopted for the purpose of more effective and efficient drainage of the
reservoirs in such formation. Such amendment may provide for the
establishment of smaller drilling or production units or may permit the drilling
of additional wells on original units.

C. Procedure

L.

All applications for tight formation designation in the State of New Mexico,
which contains state and/or fee lands in any proportion shall be filed with the
Division.

Any application for tight formation designation in the State of New Mexico
which contains Federal and/or Indian lands in any proportion shall be
concurrently filed with the USBLM. Any application containing lands entirely
administered by the federal government shall be filed only with the USBLM.

Upon receipt of an application for the designation of a tight formation which
involves both the Division and USBLM, it will be determined after preliminary
review of the subject filing which agency is the most appropriate to sponsor said
filing and submit same to the FERC.

Proof of publication must be submitted with the application. Such proof shall
consist of a copy of the legal advertisement which was published in the county
or counties covered in the proposed tight formation area. The contents of such
advertisement shall include:

a. the name, address, phone number and contact party for the applicant;

b. the legal description of the proposed area, amount of acreage contained
in said area and percentages of land types within said area; '

C. name of formation or formations to be included and pool names if
applicable;
d. a notation that any interested party must file objections or requests for

hearing with the Oil Conservation Division, P.O. Box 2088, Santa Fe,
New Mexico, 87504, within twenty days from the date of publication.

NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN ON THE APPLICATION
UNTIL PROPER PROOF OF NOTIFICATION HAS BEEN
SUBMITTED.

If no objection is received within twenty days following the receipt of a
complete application, the application may be approved administratively.



10.

11.

If a written objection is received within twenty days after receipt of a complete
application or if a hearing is deemed advisable by the Division Director, the
application shall be set for hearing and notice thereof given by the Division.

The application shall include a complete set of supporting exhibits (i.e. -- maps,
plats, cross-sections, type logs, engineering data, reservoir analyses, core
analyses, calculations, pressure information, publications, etc.) together with a
statement of the meaning and purpose of each exhibit shall be submitted to the
Division and if applicable to the USBLM. These exhibits shall cover all aspects
of the required evidentiary data described in Section D below.

An oath statement shall accompany the application signed by each participant
and notarized as to the accuracy and interpretation of the application.

Three complete additional sets of exhibits, statements, and oath statements
must accompany the application; these additional items will be forwarded to
the FERC by either the Division or USBLM, together with the Division’s
recommendation either in the form of an administrative order or letter to the
FERC filed by the USBLM.

Further, it may be necessary for the applicant to submit additional data and/or
supplement the original application with additional supporting statements
and/or data. The applicant shall be responsible for submitting the required
number of copies to complete the application for final approval by the FERC.

At the request of the USBLM or the Division, a meeting with the applicant may
be necessary so that additional inquiries or questions of the filing may be
addressed.

Evidence

1.

Evidence offered by an applicant shall include:

a. a land plat or lease map which clearly indicates the land types (state,
fee, federal, and/or Indian) and amounts and percentages for each;

b. a map and geographical and geological descriptions of the area and
formation for which the designation is sought;

c. geological and engineering data to support the application;
d. a map or list which clearly locates or describes wells which are currently

producing oil or gas, or both, from the formation within the geographical
area of the formation;



e. a report of the extent to which an applicant believes existing state and
federal regulations will assure that development of the formation will not
adversely affect or impair fresh water aquifers (during both hydraulic
fracturing and waste disposal operations) that are being used or are
expected to be used in the foreseeable future for domestic or agricultural
water supplies;

f. if the formation has been authorized to be developed by infill drilling
prior to the date of recommendation, information and data
demonstrating that the formation cannot be developed without the
incentive price established in 18 CFR §271.703(a); and,

g any other information which the Division and/or BLM may require.

2.  Evidence shall be based on each of the following geological and engineering
guidelines:

a. the estimated average in situ permeability, throughout the pay section,
is expected to be 0.1 millidarcy or less;

(1)  Permeability may be established and demonstrated by any
customary or acceptable methods, techniques, or testing
acceptable in the oil and gas industry.

b. The stabilized production rate, either at atmospheric pressure or
calculated against atmospheric pressure, of wells completed for
production in the formation, without stimulation, is not expected to
exceed the production rate determined in accordance with the following

table:
If the average depth({; }:; )t?p of the formation - The maximum allowable
: | - production rate (in. -
Exceeds but does not exceed MCF/day may not exceed:

0 1000 44
1000 1500 51
1500 2000 59
2000 2500 68
2500 3000 79
3000 3500 91
3500 4000 105




If the average depth to the top of the formation The maximum allowable
(in feet): | production rate (in
Exceeds | but does not exceed | MCF/day may not exceed:
4000 4500 122
4500 5000 141
5000 5500 163
5500 6000 188
6000 6500 217
6500 7000 251
7000 7500 290
7500 8000 336
8000 8500 388
8500 9000 449
9000 9500 519
9500 10000 600
10000 10500 693
10500 11000 802
11000 11500 927
11500 12000 1071
12000 12500 1328
12500 13000 1432
13000 13500 1655
13500 14000 1913
14000 14500 2212
14500 15000 2557
c. No well drilled into the recommended tight formation is expected to

produce, without stimulation, more than five barrels of crude oil per day.



if an application meets the guidelines contained in subparagraphs 2.b.
and 2.c. above, but does not meet the guidelines contained in
subparagraph 2.a., the applicant may, in the alternative, show that the
formation exhibits low permeability characteristics and that the incentive
price is necessary to provide reasonable incentive for production of
natural gas from the formation due to extraordinary risks or costs
associated with such production.

(1)  An application based on the guidelines outlined in subparagraph
2.d. above shall include data to support the contention that the
guidelines contained in paragraph 2.b. and 2.c above are met, and
in addition thereto, shall contain:

(a)  the types and extent of enhanced production techniques
which are expected to be necessary;

(b)  the estimated expenditures necessary for employing those
techniques; and,

(c)  an estimate of the degree of increase in production from
use of such techniques together with engineering and
geological data to support that estimate.

If the formation or any portion thereof were authorized to be developed
by infill drilling prior to the date of recommendation and the Division
has information which in its judgement indicates that such formation or
portion subject to infill drilling can be developed absent the incentive
price established in 18 CFR §271.703(a), then the Division Director shall
not include such information or portion thereof in its recommendation.



